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 1             BEFORE THE STATE OF INDIANA
   
 2               CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION
   
 3                       -  -  -
   
 4 
   
 5 
            PUBLIC MEETING OF JANUARY 20, 2023
 6 
   
 7 
   
 8                       -  -  -
   
 9                     PROCEEDINGS
   
10  in the above-captioned matter, before the Indiana
   
11  Civil Rights Commission, Adrianne L. Slash,
   
12  Chairperson, taken before me, Lindy L. Meyer,
   
13  Jr., a Notary Public in and for the State of
   
14  Indiana, County of Shelby, at the Indiana
   
15  Government Center North, 100 North Senate Avenue,
   
16  Room N300, Indianapolis, Indiana, on Friday,
   
17  January 20, 2023 at 1:11 o'clock p.m.
   
18                       -  -  -
   
19 
   
20 
   
21          ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA, LLC
                  543 Ponds Pointe Drive
22                Carmel, Indiana  46032
                TELEPHONE: (317) 848-0088
23     EMAIL: accuratereportingofindiana@gmail.com
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 1  APPEARANCES:
   
 2  COMMISSION MEMBERS:
   
 3     Adrianne L. Slash, Chairperson
       Alpha Blackburn (via Zoom)
 4     Steven A. Ramos (via Zoom)
       Holli Harrington (via Zoom)
 5     Sue Silberberg
       James W. Jackson
 6 
   
 7     INDIANA CIVIL RIGHTS COMMISSION
       By Gregory Wilson, Director
 8       & David Fleischhacker, Deputy Director
       Indiana Government Center North
 9     100 North Senate Avenue, Room N300
       Indianapolis, Indiana  46204
10         On behalf of the Commission.
   
11 
    OTHER COMMISSION STAFF PRESENT:
12 
       Michael Lostutter
13     Christiana Afuwape
   
14 
    ALSO PRESENT:
15 
       None
16 
                         -  -  -
17 
   
18 
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
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 1                                  1:11 o'clock p.m.
                                    January 20, 2023
 2                       -  -  -
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  It is 1:11
 4  on Friday, January 20th.  I call this meeting of
 5  the Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.
 6  And just for the sake of our quorum and being
 7  able to conduct business, I'd like for us to skip
 8  directly to Old Business, and we will come
 9  back -- well, can we start with having our --
10              MS. AFUWAPE: Meeting --
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: -- quorum
12  established?
13              MS. AFUWAPE: Yeah.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I'm sorry.
15              MR. LOSTUTTER: All right.  Approval
16  of the previous meeting minutes from last month's
17  Commissioners meeting.
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Is there a
19  motion?
20              COMM. JACKSON: So moved.
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
22         Is there a second?
23              COMM. SILBERBERG: Second.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 2              MR. LOSTUTTER: We'll call the roll.
 3         Comm. Blackburn?
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Comm. Blackburn,
 5  we are calling for a vote on the approval of last
 6  month's meeting minutes.
 7              COMM. BLACKBURN: Aye.
 8              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Harrington?
 9              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
10              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Silberberg?
11              COMM. SILBERBERG: Aye.
12              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Jackson?
13              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
14              MR. LOSTUTTER: Chair Slash?
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
16              MR. LOSTUTTER: Approval of previous
17  minutes.
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
19         And now we'll go ahead and start with Old
20  Business.  Okay.  The first case was assigned --
21  the first case, Julia Chachere versus Indiana
22  Wesleyan University, Case EDha22080430, was
23  assigned to Vice-Chair Ramos, and he sent in his
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 1  recommendation.
 2              MR. LOSTUTTER: His recommendation
 3  was to uphold the notice of finding of probable
 4  cause on both issues.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 6         Is there a motion?
 7              COMM. JACKSON: So moved.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 9         Is there a second?
10              COMM. SILBERBERG: Second.
11              COMM. HARRINGTON: Second.
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
13              MR. LOSTUTTER: We'll call the roll.
14         Comm. Blackburn?
15              COMM. BLACKBURN: Aye.
16              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Harrington?
17              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
18              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Silberberg?
19              COMM. SILBERBERG: Aye.
20              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Jackson?
21              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
22              MR. LOSTUTTER: Chair Slash?
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
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 1              MR. LOSTUTTER: It is approved.
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Perfect.
 3         The next one, Alicy -- Alicity Golston
 4  versus Towne Properties Asset Management Company,
 5  Case EMra22040192.  The case was assigned to me,
 6  and it's my recommendation that we uphold the
 7  Deputy Director's finding of no probable cause.
 8              MR. LOSTUTTER: And --
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Is there a
10  motion?
11              COMM. SILBERBERG: So moved.
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
13              MR. LOSTUTTER: Second?
14              COMM. JACKSON: Second.
15              MR. LOSTUTTER: We'll call the roll.
16         Comm. Blackburn?
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
18              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. --
19              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: And we have
20  Vice-Chair Ramos now.
21              MR. LOSTUTTER: Okay.
22         Vice-Chair Ramos?
23                    (No response.)
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 1              COMM. HARRINGTON: This is
 2  Comm. Harrington.
 3              MR. LOSTUTTER: Okay.
 4              COMM. HARRINGTON: Whoever's calling
 5  the vote, we can bare -- I can barely hear them.
 6              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 7              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Harrington?
 8              MR. WILSON: Okay.  Sit over here.
 9              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
10              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Silberberg?
11              COMM. SILBERBERG: Aye.
12              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Jackson?
13              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
14              MR. LOSTUTTER: Chair Slash?
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
16         The next case --
17              MR. LOSTUTTER: Upheld.
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
19         The next case, William A. Pumphrey, Jr.
20  Versus Dunkin Donuts, Case PAhra22040266.  The
21  case was assigned to Comm. Tolliver, and he sends
22  his recommendation in ahead.
23              MR. LOSTUTTER: He -- his
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 1  recommendation was to uphold the notice of
 2  findings, no probable cause.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 4         Is there a motion?
 5              COMM. JACKSON: So moved.
 6              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 7         Is there a second?
 8              COMM. SILBERBERG: Second.
 9              COMM. HARRINGTON: Second.
10              COMM. BLACKBURN: Second.
11              MR. LOSTUTTER: We'll take the roll.
12         Comm. Blackburn?
13              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
14              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Harrington?
15              COMM. HARRINGTON: Comm. Harrington,
16  aye.
17              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Jackson?
18              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
19              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Silberberg?
20              COMM. SILBERBERG: Aye.
21              MR. LOSTUTTER: Chair Slash?
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
23              MR. LOSTUTTER: Upheld.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 2         The next case, Keith McCoy versus EHOB,
 3  Inc., Case EMse22060311.  The case was assigned
 4  to Comm. Silberberg.
 5              COMM. SILBERBERG: I uphold the
 6  decision of no probable cause.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 8         Is there a motion?
 9              COMM. JACKSON: So moved.
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Is there a
11  second?
12              COMM. HARRINGTON: Second,
13  Comm. Harrington.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
15              MR. LOSTUTTER: I'll call the roll.
16         Comm. Blackburn?
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, aye.
18              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Harrington?
19              COMM. HARRINGTON: Comm. Harrington,
20  aye.
21              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Jackson?
22              COMM. JACKSON: Aye.
23              MR. LOSTUTTER: Comm. Silberberg?
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 1              COMM. SILBERBERG: Aye.
 2              MR. LOSTUTTER: Chair Slash?
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 4              MR. LOSTUTTER: Motion's upheld.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 6         The next case, under Motions and Other
 7  Filings, we have Andria Moss versus Greyhound
 8  Bus Terminal/Miller Transportation,
 9  Case PAha21110432.  I would like to continue this
10  case.  This was a case that Comm. Tolliver was
11  assigned and Comm. Tolliver would like to take an
12  action on.  He's not present, so I'd like to
13  continue this until Comm. Tolliver is present for
14  a meeting.
15         Okay.  I don't have to do any further
16  action; right?
17                    (No response.)
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Welcome,
19  Vice-Chair Ramos.  You're supposed to be on
20  vacation.
21              MR. LOSTUTTER: Can you hear us?
22              COMM. RAMOS: Thank you.  I'm trying.
23              MR. LOSTUTTER: Okay.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 2         All right.  So, moving to New Business,
 3  under Motions and Other Filings, in the case of
 4  Shantana Maxwell versus Greystone Property
 5  Management, Case HOha22110651, the Respondent has
 6  made a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction
 7  and Supplemental Answer to Complaint of
 8  Discrimination.
 9         The Complainant has not responded to that
10  request, and so, I've been asked to consider to
11  grant or deny dismissal, and I would like to deny
12  the dismissal on behalf of the Commission so that
13  the Complainant can be heard through
14  investigation.  I believe that was my action.
15              MS. AFUWAPE: Yes.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Very good.
17         So, the next set that we have are
18  Administrative Law Judge Orders, and we do need
19  to vote to affirm, remand or amend on this;
20  right?
21              MR. LOSTUTTER: Well, the objection
22  period in this matter has not yet closed, so --
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Oh.
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 1              MR. LOSTUTTER: -- no action --
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: No action --
 3              MR. LOSTUTTER: -- required at this
 4  time.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: -- at this time.
 6  Fabulous.
 7         Okay.  The rest of these were
 8  automatically confirmed --
 9              MR. LOSTUTTER: Yes.
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: -- and there's a
11  good amount of them.  I'll do my best to read
12  them and get Vice-Chair Ramos back to vacation so
13  he doesn't have to vote on anything.
14         The first case, Wendy Morrow versus Qdoba
15  Restaurant Corporation d/b/a Qdoba Mexican Eats,
16  Case EMsh19050294.  That case was automatically
17  confirmed.  I'm just reading it into the record.
18         The next one, Case ICRC/Saulo Barbosa -- I
19  hope I did that right -- versus NWIAPTS LLC d/b/a
20  Park Place Apartments, Case HOha22060303.
21         The next case, Marland Ratekin versus
22  Dellen Chevrolet Buick GMC, that's
23  Case PAha22060328.
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 1         And the last one, ICRC/Lily Rosati Yoos
 2  versus Beta -- let get me get myself -- what is
 3  it -- Beta XI Chapter of Gamma Delta Fraternity
 4  House Association, Inc. & Beta XI Chapter of
 5  Alpha Gamma Delta, and that concludes our section
 6  of the ones that were already confirmed by the
 7  ALJ.  I just needed to read them into the record.
 8         While I have all of you on the line and
 9  while we're present before we get to the
10  Directors' Report, going back to the beginning,
11  next month's meeting is February 17th.  That
12  leads into the President's Day holiday weekend.
13  If there's any travel plans to not be available,
14  is there anyone who cannot confirm attendance,
15  whether in person or virtual, on Friday,
16  February 17th?
17                    (No response.)
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I will raise my
19  hand and say I'll be present in person.
20              COMM. HARRINGTON: I'll be able to be
21  present live.
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
23              COMM. SILBERBERG: I will be present
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 1  in person.
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
 3         Anyone -- well, we have three in person,
 4  that's great.  Hopefully Comm. Tolliver can make
 5  it as well.  Does anyone have conflict being
 6  virtual?  Because we'll need at least one there.
 7              COMM. BLACKBURN: When?
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: February 17th.
 9              COMM. BLACKBURN: Oh.
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Will you able to
11  join us, Comm. Blackburn?
12              COMM. BLACKBURN: Yes --
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
14              COMM. BLACKBURN: -- I hope to be
15  there.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: I plan to be in
18  town.
19              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
20              COMM. RAMOS: Madam Chair, this is
21  Vice-Chair Ramos.
22              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Uh-huh.
23              COMM. RAMOS: My schedule for the
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 1  17th of February is uncertain at this time.
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 3              COMM. RAMOS: So, I can neither
 4  confirm or not confirm at this time.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  We'll
 6  leave it until we send out the meeting
 7  announcement, and we'll be pending on your
 8  participation at that time.
 9              COMM. RAMOS: Thank you.
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Uh-huh.  Okay.  I
11  think, Vice-Chair Ramos, you mentioned in your
12  message to me there was a concern with public
13  comment, or was that what you -- you were trying
14  to get in on the line?
15              COMM. RAMOS: I wasn't able to dial
16  in --
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Oh, okay.
18              COMM. RAMOS: -- for whatever reason,
19  so I'm -- but I'm able to finally connect by this
20  means, so we're okay.
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Perfect.
22         While I have everyone still participating
23  on the line, are there any announcements?
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 1                    (No response.)
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Now I'd
 3  like to take us back to the top of our agenda for
 4  the ICRC Director's Report.  We were done voting,
 5  so if there's anyone who is pressed to get to
 6  another place, please feel free to do so, but I
 7  would love for you to stay on just to listen in
 8  to this report as well.
 9              MR. WILSON: Are you ready, Chair?
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Uh-huh.
11              MR. WILSON: All right.
12         Thank you, again, Commissioners.  I
13  appreciate you sacrificing your time being here
14  and to do this great work.
15         I just wanted to update you.  The -- one
16  is, we're just happy with our MLK celebration.
17  We thought that it was very well attended, the
18  events went over very well.  I want to thank
19  those Commissioners who were able to attend.
20  Again, it was one of our best, I believe.  You
21  got to see some of our work from the data
22  service, which we will be doing again this year.
23         We're already in preparations for the
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 1  two-day Day of Service in September, so hopefully
 2  you'll put that in your calendar somewhere in
 3  September, come out and join us.  We expect even
 4  a bigger turnout, and that's all because of the
 5  Governor's -- when he did the two days for Days
 6  of Service now, and so we're very thankful for
 7  that.
 8         So, anyway, we are moving forward to our
 9  next two.  I think we have the Black History
10  Month, and then we have Disability Month, and
11  then we have Fair Housing Month.  We're still on
12  the radio up in Northern Indiana, on WLTH, where
13  we talk about fair housing and what we do here at
14  Civil Rights also.
15         We are here on every Saturday -- I mean
16  every second Saturday of the month on 1310 AM
17  with Tom Brown, where we talk about what we do
18  here at the agency.  We had a very successful, I
19  believe, marketing campaign around the state.  It
20  was a strategic marketing campaign, where we
21  focused on cities that we hadn't really had any
22  complaints from, like Richmond and Kokomo and
23  some other areas in the surrounding counties,
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 1  like Marion, Anderson, and we thought that was
 2  very important that we kind of focus on those
 3  areas.  So, we'll be gathering the data and
 4  trying to look how effective that campaign was
 5  based on the complaints that come in and where
 6  they came from.  So, you can look forward to some
 7  data on that.
 8         The agencies and -- this agency, which a
 9  lot of the new talent we have, we're very
10  fortunate to have gotten David here, who is now
11  the -- you know, been here for almost, what,
12  David; two years.
13              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Just over a year.
14              MR. WILSON: Over a year?  Well, it
15  seems like ten years.
16                     (Laughter.)
17              MR. WILSON: But this thing will grow
18  on you.  But he helps so much, him and Erik and
19  Stephanie, the leadership team has helped so much
20  in coming up with new ideas to help us move the
21  agency forward.  This year right here is the year
22  of implementation, so everything from our new
23  systems to the phone system, which David can
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 1  elaborate when he talks about it, because him and
 2  Erik have been the architect of that, making sure
 3  that everything was in place.
 4         You see we continue to bring new
 5  technology into the agency.  Like I said,
 6  everybody has a laptop, really pretty, and they
 7  can work from home two days a week, and we've
 8  tried to create an enjoyable atmosphere, where we
 9  know people have to come to work to do their job,
10  but at the same time, you can make it pleasant.
11  We think we're being very successful with that.
12         The External Affairs group has been
13  incredible.  You know, a lot of the videos you've
14  seen, we do them in-house now, we have the
15  technology, and actually we're going to set up
16  our studio in the back, where we can record our
17  own PSA's.  We've already got the equipment, it's
18  just moving some things out, where we'll record
19  our own PSA's, and even do some public
20  broadcasting back there.  So, we have some
21  long-term plans just to make this agency a
22  premier agency.
23         We've been partnering with other agencies
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 1  around the country with trying to find out better
 2  ideas, better solutions, and vice-versa, sharing
 3  what we do here with those agencies.  And so,
 4  it's been a real successful partnership.
 5         We're planning for the conference, so
 6  that's in June, Juneteenth, kind of based on the
 7  Juneteenth theme.  And so, we'll have agencies
 8  from around the country come in and participate
 9  in the training.  We've partnered with the
10  Governor's Council on -- for people with
11  disabilities, and so, we'll be doing a hybrid
12  piece there.  We think that's exciting.  And
13  we'll deal with a lot of topics that we -- that
14  deal with civil rights and what we do here at the
15  agency, as well as some of the things that deal
16  with disability and making sure things are
17  accessible.
18         So, it's been a really good year, and
19  David will talk a little bit about the
20  legislation that we've been looking at and what
21  we're trying to do with collecting data.  So,
22  this is an exciting year, I will tell everybody,
23  and we think the past has been great, the
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 1  future's going to be even better.
 2         And remember, this year our theme is
 3  humanity.  I mean we've talked about that.  We --
 4  even though we do this work, we still want to put
 5  out a positive message to others, because it is
 6  about how we treat one another, it is -- humanity
 7  will change how we treat people and help to
 8  eradicate discrimination.  So, we try to do those
 9  types of things in our messaging so that it's
10  positive.
11         So, any questions for me before I turn it
12  over to David?
13                    (No response.)
14              MR. WILSON: I'm going to --
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Are there any --
16  are there any questions on the line?
17                    (No response.)
18              MR. WILSON: Okay.  I'm going to turn
19  it over to David, and I'm --
20              COMM. RAMOS: I don't have any
21  questions.
22              MR. WILSON: And I apologize; I'm
23  going over --
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 1              COMM. HARRINGTON: No, there are no
 2  questions.  I just wanted to give you guys kudos
 3  for everything that you guys did last year, and
 4  I'm looking forward to seeing that you continue.
 5  Your kickoff of MLK with your program was
 6  phenomenal, and we look forward to the things to
 7  come.
 8              MR. WILSON: And thanks for the
 9  gloves, Holli, and the support for the airport
10  with gloves.  This winter wasn't as bad as we had
11  in previous years.  Chair Slash, you know.
12  You've --
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Yep.
14              MR. WILSON: -- been there, and so --
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: We did great this
16  year.  It was very pleasant to be outside, it was
17  mild, misty.
18              MR. WILSON: Yeah.  But anyway, I'm
19  going to that same event that Holli's headed to,
20  so, again, I want to listen and be a part of
21  what's happening there.  So, thank you, everyone.
22         David, you'll finish?
23              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Absolutely.
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 1  Thank you, Chair Slash.
 2         A couple of updates on some projects.
 3  Like Greg mentioned, we have the CMS enhancements
 4  that we're working on, our Case Management
 5  System, so a lot of those enhancements have been
 6  implemented, and now our staff are working within
 7  those, so that's going to better enable us to
 8  move cases through that process and track things
 9  within it.
10         We really didn't have a litigation section
11  in there before, but now we do, so we're going
12  to -- our attorneys are going to be able to have
13  things in there and move cases along, and we're
14  going to be able to generate reports more easily
15  and look at metrics and those kind of things.
16  So, we're excited about the new capabilities that
17  we'll be able to have from that system.
18         We also have the -- he mentioned the phone
19  system.  It's the Genesis Cloud phone system, so
20  it's a computer-based phone system, so we're
21  going to be getting rid of our desktops -- our
22  desk phones, essentially.  And currently
23  January 26th, next Thursday, is our go-live date


Page 24


 1  for the new phone system, so we're excited about
 2  that.
 3         We're fine tuning that.  We're getting our
 4  staff trained on how to operate within it, but
 5  starting on January 26th, when somebody calls
 6  into our 1-800 number or the general 317-233-2600
 7  number, then it'll go into the automated
 8  answering system, and then farm staff out to
 9  wherever they need to go within that, based on
10  who they want to talk to.
11         We do have -- we just finalized some
12  contracts for engaging in housing testing, a
13  testing program.  We've partnered with Indiana
14  Housing and Community Development Authority, and
15  also procured some HUD funds for that, so we're
16  working with an outside vendor who's going to
17  hire the staff and everything to do the testing.
18         So, they're going to be going to mainly
19  IHCDA properties and do testing on various
20  different discriminatory type actions, so that
21  you have a control person and then the test
22  person, and then see if there's a significant
23  difference in between how they're treated, and
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 1  then based on that, we can -- that could generate
 2  director-initiated complaints, and then go ahead
 3  and investigate further.
 4         So, we're engaged in that.  We have
 5  essentially a two-year contract with a vendor to
 6  engage in testing per -- to the tune of about
 7  $275,000 worth of testing over the two years.
 8  So, we're excited about what that'll show and
 9  what type of impact that'll have.
10         As far as some metrics go, we've been able
11  to close out 2022, so I can kind of report on
12  where we're at with end-of-the-year numbers, and
13  to kind of give you a comparison of where we were
14  in 2022 compared to 2021, in 2022, we had 2,470
15  inquiries, and that was up from 2,365 in 2021, so
16  about 105 increase.
17         However, we were able to generate a
18  significant more number of complaints this year.
19  We had 790 complaints, formalized complaints, in
20  2022, versus 507 in 2021.  That was a 56-percent
21  increase in formalized complaints between the two
22  years.
23         Another, I think, pretty cool thing is
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 1  that in 2021, from those inquiries to complaints,
 2  that was about a 21.4 percent inquiry to
 3  formalized complaint realization versus 2022.  It
 4  was increased to a 32 percent.  So, more
 5  inquiries resulted in complaints being drafted
 6  from their contact with us.
 7         And then in 2022, we -- through our
 8  mediation services for our cases, the settlements
 9  that were entered into resulted in over $765,000
10  worth of monetary relief for complainants, and
11  that was up from 560,000 in 2021, so a 37-percent
12  increase in monetary relief for complainants.
13  And then we also closed 676 cases in 2022, which
14  was an increase from 520 in 2021.
15         So, a lot of work was done this past year,
16  just in general, but also in comparison to 2021.
17  You know, some of that may be attributed to more
18  folks coming out of the pandemic and people more
19  interacting with each other and just people being
20  people, resulting in complaints and stuff, but
21  we've also had a very -- a pretty stable staff
22  this year and a very good staff, so I think that
23  that's helped move cases along to generate those
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 1  numbers.
 2         We do have currently, or as of the end of
 3  December, 61 open litigation cases, and just to
 4  kind of give you a perspective over the year, at
 5  the beginning of 2022, in January, we had about
 6  45 open litigation cases.  At its peak, we were
 7  at about 75 open litigation cases during the
 8  middle of the year, and now we're back down to
 9  the low 60's, so, a product of getting things
10  settled, moving things along, and all of that.
11         Overall in 2022, we had about a
12  ten-and-a-half percent cause finding rate as far
13  as cases closed as a probable cause, so that's, I
14  think, consistent with years past, but those are
15  kind of metrics as far as some of the work that
16  the operations side does.
17         Greg mentioned that I am tracking kind of
18  the legislative things that are going on right
19  now.  We're in the middle of the General
20  Assembly.  It just started a couple of weeks ago,
21  so there's several bills that have potential
22  impact for the work that we do within the
23  Commission.
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 1         So, we'll see kind of where they go or if
 2  they proceed, some looking at equal pay
 3  discrimination, some looking at some things more
 4  in the education article, but they talk about the
 5  discrimination stuff, so it may bleed over into
 6  what we do as far as investigating discrimination
 7  within the education area, even though it's not
 8  specifically within our chapter.
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Can I ask a quick
10  question --
11              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Sure.
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: -- about that?
13  In those cases, would that mean that the ICRC
14  would be a part of testimony or a recommendation
15  before testimony is accepted on the types of
16  things that could lead something back here very
17  quickly?
18              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Are you talking
19  about like within the General Assembly?
20              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Yeah, as they are
21  working through the bill formation process.
22              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Okay.  So, we
23  work with the Governor's Office as far as whether
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 1  or not we would provide testimony for any
 2  particular committee hearing on a particular
 3  bill.  Sometimes the committee may request an
 4  agency to come in and talk about a bill's impact
 5  on that agency, and then we would coordinate that
 6  with the Governor's Office as far as providing
 7  that testimony and making sure that what we're
 8  seeing is aligned with what the Governor's Office
 9  has for its kind of legislative priorities and
10  everything.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
12              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: So, you know, we
13  may get asked to talk about a couple of these,
14  but some -- many of these may not even see a
15  committee hearing, so it depends on kind of what
16  the chair of that committee wants to do as far as
17  hearing bills.
18         There's one that would directly impact
19  this Commission, but it's an impact of all
20  commissions and agencies, but it's a bill that
21  would require all meetings like this to be
22  transmitted live and to be recorded, and then the
23  recordings of that transmission of that public
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 1  meeting to be maintained for three years, and
 2  then sent over to Archives after that.
 3         So, that's something that's out there, so,
 4  again, with all of the other bills that I'm
 5  tracking, it's one of those that I'm tracking,
 6  but it's one that would have direct impact on
 7  this Commission and -- but we're already doing
 8  live transmissions, but we would just continue
 9  that practice, and then there's that archival
10  aspect of it post-meeting.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Is there anything
12  possibly going through the General Assembly that
13  would also allow commissions to meet virtually a
14  hundred percent?
15              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: No.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: No one has
17  brought that up at all?
18              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: That is not in
19  any of the bills that I've seen.
20              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: That's insane.
21  Okay.  I just -- I have so many questions.  I
22  have asked the Governor's staff this question
23  directly, because all commissions probably had
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 1  great attendance rates when they were virtual,
 2  and they've likely gone back to poor attendance.
 3              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: (Nodded yes.)
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  My small
 5  bone to pick here.  Small; right?
 6              COMM. SILBERBERG: Right.
 7              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Specifically, we
 8  want people from all over the state to
 9  participate in these hearings.
10              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: So, like I said,
11  I'm monitoring all of the bills that I believe
12  have some type of impact on the work that we do
13  here within the Commission, so as things kind of
14  move through the process, I'll update the
15  Commission at future meetings as far as where
16  they stand and what's going on with those.
17         And then at the last Commission meeting we
18  talked a little bit about translation services,
19  because I had mentioned that with the new phone
20  call system, we're going to have a Spanish option
21  for callers so that they can go through that.  I
22  did find out that in 2022 we spent roughly $530
23  on translation services.  We're currently going
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 1  through kind of the invoices and stuff to see how
 2  that breaks down, but just like one invoice from
 3  December of 2021, there were six instances where
 4  we used the translation service, and that equated
 5  to about $42 worth of cost for that service.
 6         So, we'll look to generate a little bit
 7  more specific numbers as far as how frequently
 8  the translation service is being used, but I know
 9  the Commission had asked that last time, so I
10  wanted to just give an update on that we're
11  looking at it and trying to see if we can get a
12  better number for that for the Commission.
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: That number could
14  either represent an underrepresented population
15  or maybe a -- they just don't know that the
16  translation exists and how easy it is to access.
17  It could be all things; right?
18              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Yeah, and like
19  even this December one, all of the calls on that,
20  or all of the interactions, four out of the six
21  were one of our staff attorneys talking with
22  complainants or aggrieved persons, and then two
23  of them were one of our mediation staff --
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 2              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: -- working
 3  through the mediation process.  So, it doesn't
 4  look like any of those were like our intake staff
 5  talking with a complainant calling in for an
 6  inquiry, but those do happen, but we also have
 7  some Spanish-speaking staff --
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 9              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: -- who are here,
10  who -- frequently calls are routed to them for
11  that interaction if possible, so --
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  So, that
13  speaks to staff, and that -- I had an additional
14  question, but I think that just answered it.
15              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: Okay.
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Are there any
17  questions for David or questions that we may want
18  to ask David that he can answer on behalf of
19  Executive Director Wilson?
20              COMM. BLACKBURN: I have just a
21  comment.  I think that like over the years we
22  could draw a pretty close parallel between the
23  number of complaints and inquiries to the various
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 1  effective outreach and educational work that the
 2  Commission has done.  So, I think we should
 3  remember to put it in perspective, that when it
 4  seems like we're not making progress, actually it
 5  reflects through the numbers that we are making
 6  progress.
 7              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: And I would agree
 8  with that.  Our education and outreach efforts
 9  definitely increased last year, which may be
10  another contributing factor to why we had
11  increase -- an increase in complaints, so --
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Yes.
13              MR. FLEISCHHACKER: -- absolutely.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
15         No other questions?
16                    (No response.)
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: And I -- we don't
18  have anyone from the public on the line or in
19  person, so no need to call for public comments.
20         I'll make just a brief personal point of
21  privilege.  Thank you, Vice-Chair Ramos, for
22  coming out last week.  Comm. Harrington is off.
23  She was also around last week as well.  I was
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 1  able to be around for the first time in years, so
   
 2  a job well done.  I know that as staff, there are
   
 3  many staff members that took part, and those of
   
 4  you who showed up after hours, I appreciate you
   
 5  for that as well.
   
 6         Oh, you were around, too, that's right.
   
 7  You came with us too.  Thank you.  Thanks for
   
 8  being there.
   
 9              COMM. JACKSON:  You're welcome.
   
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Other than that,
   
11  I think this was a light meeting, but it was well
   
12  run.  Thank you for your time.
   
13         Thank you, everyone on the phone.
   
14         Vice-Chair Ramos, enjoy your vacation.
   
15              COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
   
16              CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It is -- let's
   
17  see -- 1:41.  I will call this meeting adjourned.
   
18                       -  -  -
              Thereupon, the proceedings of
19           January 20, 2023 were concluded
                   at 1:41 o'clock p.m.
20                       -  -  -
   
21 
   
22 
   
23 
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 1                     CERTIFICATE
   
 2         I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned
   
 3  Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the
   
 4  City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do
   
 5  hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and
   
 6  correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me
   
 7  on Friday, January 20, 2023 in this matter and
   
 8  transcribed by me.
   
 9 
   
10                       _________________________
   
11                        Lindy L. Meyer, Jr.,
   
12                        Notary Public in and
   
13                        for the State of Indiana.
   
14 
   
15  My Commission expires August 26, 2024.
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            1                                   1:11 o'clock p.m.
                                                January 20, 2023
            2                        -  -  -

            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  It is 1:11

            4   on Friday, January 20th.  I call this meeting of

            5   the Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.

            6   And just for the sake of our quorum and being

            7   able to conduct business, I'd like for us to skip

            8   directly to Old Business, and we will come

            9   back -- well, can we start with having our --

           10               MS. AFUWAPE:  Meeting --

           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- quorum

           12   established?

           13               MS. AFUWAPE:  Yeah.

           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm sorry.

           15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  All right.  Approval

           16   of the previous meeting minutes from last month's

           17   Commissioners meeting.

           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a

           19   motion?

           20               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.

           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           22          Is there a second?

           23               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.
�
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.

            3          Comm. Blackburn?

            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Comm. Blackburn,

            5   we are calling for a vote on the approval of last

            6   month's meeting minutes.

            7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye.

            8               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?

            9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.

           10               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?

           11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.

           12               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?

           13               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.

           14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?

           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.

           16               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Approval of previous

           17   minutes.

           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           19          And now we'll go ahead and start with Old

           20   Business.  Okay.  The first case was assigned --

           21   the first case, Julia Chachere versus Indiana

           22   Wesleyan University, Case EDha22080430, was

           23   assigned to Vice-Chair Ramos, and he sent in his
�
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            1   recommendation.

            2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  His recommendation

            3   was to uphold the notice of finding of probable

            4   cause on both issues.

            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            6          Is there a motion?

            7               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.

            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            9          Is there a second?

           10               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.

           11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second.

           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           13               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.

           14          Comm. Blackburn?

           15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye.

           16               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?

           17               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.

           18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?

           19               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.

           20               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?

           21               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.

           22               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?

           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
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            1               MR. LOSTUTTER:  It is approved.

            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Perfect.

            3          The next one, Alicy -- Alicity Golston

            4   versus Towne Properties Asset Management Company,

            5   Case EMra22040192.  The case was assigned to me,

            6   and it's my recommendation that we uphold the

            7   Deputy Director's finding of no probable cause.

            8               MR. LOSTUTTER:  And --

            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a

           10   motion?

           11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  So moved.

           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           13               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Second?

           14               COMM. JACKSON:  Second.

           15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.

           16          Comm. Blackburn?

           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.

           18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. --

           19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And we have

           20   Vice-Chair Ramos now.

           21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.

           22          Vice-Chair Ramos?

           23                     (No response.)
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            1               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is

            2   Comm. Harrington.

            3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.

            4               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Whoever's calling

            5   the vote, we can bare -- I can barely hear them.

            6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

            7               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?

            8               MR. WILSON:  Okay.  Sit over here.

            9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.

           10               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?

           11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.

           12               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?

           13               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.

           14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?

           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.

           16          The next case --

           17               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Upheld.

           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

           19          The next case, William A. Pumphrey, Jr.

           20   Versus Dunkin Donuts, Case PAhra22040266.  The

           21   case was assigned to Comm. Tolliver, and he sends

           22   his recommendation in ahead.

           23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  He -- his
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            1   recommendation was to uphold the notice of

            2   findings, no probable cause.

            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            4          Is there a motion?

            5               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.

            6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            7          Is there a second?

            8               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.

            9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second.

           10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Second.

           11               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll take the roll.

           12          Comm. Blackburn?

           13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.

           14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?

           15               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,

           16   aye.

           17               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?

           18               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.

           19               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?

           20               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.

           21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?

           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.

           23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Upheld.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            2          The next case, Keith McCoy versus EHOB,

            3   Inc., Case EMse22060311.  The case was assigned

            4   to Comm. Silberberg.

            5               COMM. SILBERBERG:  I uphold the

            6   decision of no probable cause.

            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            8          Is there a motion?

            9               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.

           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a

           11   second?

           12               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second,

           13   Comm. Harrington.

           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  I'll call the roll.

           16          Comm. Blackburn?

           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.

           18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?

           19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,

           20   aye.

           21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?

           22               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.

           23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
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            1               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.

            2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?

            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.

            4               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Motion's upheld.

            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

            6          The next case, under Motions and Other

            7   Filings, we have Andria Moss versus Greyhound

            8   Bus Terminal/Miller Transportation,

            9   Case PAha21110432.  I would like to continue this

           10   case.  This was a case that Comm. Tolliver was

           11   assigned and Comm. Tolliver would like to take an

           12   action on.  He's not present, so I'd like to

           13   continue this until Comm. Tolliver is present for

           14   a meeting.

           15          Okay.  I don't have to do any further

           16   action; right?

           17                     (No response.)

           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Welcome,

           19   Vice-Chair Ramos.  You're supposed to be on

           20   vacation.

           21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Can you hear us?

           22               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.  I'm trying.

           23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

            2          All right.  So, moving to New Business,

            3   under Motions and Other Filings, in the case of

            4   Shantana Maxwell versus Greystone Property

            5   Management, Case HOha22110651, the Respondent has

            6   made a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction

            7   and Supplemental Answer to Complaint of

            8   Discrimination.

            9          The Complainant has not responded to that

           10   request, and so, I've been asked to consider to

           11   grant or deny dismissal, and I would like to deny

           12   the dismissal on behalf of the Commission so that

           13   the Complainant can be heard through

           14   investigation.  I believe that was my action.

           15               MS. AFUWAPE:  Yes.

           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Very good.

           17          So, the next set that we have are

           18   Administrative Law Judge Orders, and we do need

           19   to vote to affirm, remand or amend on this;

           20   right?

           21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Well, the objection

           22   period in this matter has not yet closed, so --

           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Oh.
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            1               MR. LOSTUTTER:  -- no action --

            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No action --

            3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  -- required at this

            4   time.

            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- at this time.

            6   Fabulous.

            7          Okay.  The rest of these were

            8   automatically confirmed --

            9               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Yes.

           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- and there's a

           11   good amount of them.  I'll do my best to read

           12   them and get Vice-Chair Ramos back to vacation so

           13   he doesn't have to vote on anything.

           14          The first case, Wendy Morrow versus Qdoba

           15   Restaurant Corporation d/b/a Qdoba Mexican Eats,

           16   Case EMsh19050294.  That case was automatically

           17   confirmed.  I'm just reading it into the record.

           18          The next one, Case ICRC/Saulo Barbosa -- I

           19   hope I did that right -- versus NWIAPTS LLC d/b/a

           20   Park Place Apartments, Case HOha22060303.

           21          The next case, Marland Ratekin versus

           22   Dellen Chevrolet Buick GMC, that's

           23   Case PAha22060328.
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            1          And the last one, ICRC/Lily Rosati Yoos

            2   versus Beta -- let get me get myself -- what is

            3   it -- Beta XI Chapter of Gamma Delta Fraternity

            4   House Association, Inc. & Beta XI Chapter of

            5   Alpha Gamma Delta, and that concludes our section

            6   of the ones that were already confirmed by the

            7   ALJ.  I just needed to read them into the record.

            8          While I have all of you on the line and

            9   while we're present before we get to the

           10   Directors' Report, going back to the beginning,

           11   next month's meeting is February 17th.  That

           12   leads into the President's Day holiday weekend.

           13   If there's any travel plans to not be available,

           14   is there anyone who cannot confirm attendance,

           15   whether in person or virtual, on Friday,

           16   February 17th?

           17                     (No response.)

           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I will raise my

           19   hand and say I'll be present in person.

           20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'll be able to be

           21   present live.

           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

           23               COMM. SILBERBERG:  I will be present
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            1   in person.

            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.

            3          Anyone -- well, we have three in person,

            4   that's great.  Hopefully Comm. Tolliver can make

            5   it as well.  Does anyone have conflict being

            6   virtual?  Because we'll need at least one there.

            7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  When?

            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  February 17th.

            9               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Oh.

           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Will you able to

           11   join us, Comm. Blackburn?

           12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes --

           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

           14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- I hope to be

           15   there.

           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I plan to be in

           18   town.

           19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           20               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, this is

           21   Vice-Chair Ramos.

           22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.

           23               COMM. RAMOS:  My schedule for the
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            1   17th of February is uncertain at this time.

            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

            3               COMM. RAMOS:  So, I can neither

            4   confirm or not confirm at this time.

            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We'll

            6   leave it until we send out the meeting

            7   announcement, and we'll be pending on your

            8   participation at that time.

            9               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.

           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.  Okay.  I

           11   think, Vice-Chair Ramos, you mentioned in your

           12   message to me there was a concern with public

           13   comment, or was that what you -- you were trying

           14   to get in on the line?

           15               COMM. RAMOS:  I wasn't able to dial

           16   in --

           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Oh, okay.

           18               COMM. RAMOS:  -- for whatever reason,

           19   so I'm -- but I'm able to finally connect by this

           20   means, so we're okay.

           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Perfect.

           22          While I have everyone still participating

           23   on the line, are there any announcements?
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            1                     (No response.)

            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Now I'd

            3   like to take us back to the top of our agenda for

            4   the ICRC Director's Report.  We were done voting,

            5   so if there's anyone who is pressed to get to

            6   another place, please feel free to do so, but I

            7   would love for you to stay on just to listen in

            8   to this report as well.

            9               MR. WILSON:  Are you ready, Chair?

           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.

           11               MR. WILSON:  All right.

           12          Thank you, again, Commissioners.  I

           13   appreciate you sacrificing your time being here

           14   and to do this great work.

           15          I just wanted to update you.  The -- one

           16   is, we're just happy with our MLK celebration.

           17   We thought that it was very well attended, the

           18   events went over very well.  I want to thank

           19   those Commissioners who were able to attend.

           20   Again, it was one of our best, I believe.  You

           21   got to see some of our work from the data

           22   service, which we will be doing again this year.

           23          We're already in preparations for the
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            1   two-day Day of Service in September, so hopefully

            2   you'll put that in your calendar somewhere in

            3   September, come out and join us.  We expect even

            4   a bigger turnout, and that's all because of the

            5   Governor's -- when he did the two days for Days

            6   of Service now, and so we're very thankful for

            7   that.

            8          So, anyway, we are moving forward to our

            9   next two.  I think we have the Black History

           10   Month, and then we have Disability Month, and

           11   then we have Fair Housing Month.  We're still on

           12   the radio up in Northern Indiana, on WLTH, where

           13   we talk about fair housing and what we do here at

           14   Civil Rights also.

           15          We are here on every Saturday -- I mean

           16   every second Saturday of the month on 1310 AM

           17   with Tom Brown, where we talk about what we do

           18   here at the agency.  We had a very successful, I

           19   believe, marketing campaign around the state.  It

           20   was a strategic marketing campaign, where we

           21   focused on cities that we hadn't really had any

           22   complaints from, like Richmond and Kokomo and

           23   some other areas in the surrounding counties,
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            1   like Marion, Anderson, and we thought that was

            2   very important that we kind of focus on those

            3   areas.  So, we'll be gathering the data and

            4   trying to look how effective that campaign was

            5   based on the complaints that come in and where

            6   they came from.  So, you can look forward to some

            7   data on that.

            8          The agencies and -- this agency, which a

            9   lot of the new talent we have, we're very

           10   fortunate to have gotten David here, who is now

           11   the -- you know, been here for almost, what,

           12   David; two years.

           13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Just over a year.

           14               MR. WILSON:  Over a year?  Well, it

           15   seems like ten years.

           16                      (Laughter.)

           17               MR. WILSON:  But this thing will grow

           18   on you.  But he helps so much, him and Erik and

           19   Stephanie, the leadership team has helped so much

           20   in coming up with new ideas to help us move the

           21   agency forward.  This year right here is the year

           22   of implementation, so everything from our new

           23   systems to the phone system, which David can
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            1   elaborate when he talks about it, because him and

            2   Erik have been the architect of that, making sure

            3   that everything was in place.

            4          You see we continue to bring new

            5   technology into the agency.  Like I said,

            6   everybody has a laptop, really pretty, and they

            7   can work from home two days a week, and we've

            8   tried to create an enjoyable atmosphere, where we

            9   know people have to come to work to do their job,

           10   but at the same time, you can make it pleasant.

           11   We think we're being very successful with that.

           12          The External Affairs group has been

           13   incredible.  You know, a lot of the videos you've

           14   seen, we do them in-house now, we have the

           15   technology, and actually we're going to set up

           16   our studio in the back, where we can record our

           17   own PSA's.  We've already got the equipment, it's

           18   just moving some things out, where we'll record

           19   our own PSA's, and even do some public

           20   broadcasting back there.  So, we have some

           21   long-term plans just to make this agency a

           22   premier agency.

           23          We've been partnering with other agencies
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            1   around the country with trying to find out better

            2   ideas, better solutions, and vice-versa, sharing

            3   what we do here with those agencies.  And so,

            4   it's been a real successful partnership.

            5          We're planning for the conference, so

            6   that's in June, Juneteenth, kind of based on the

            7   Juneteenth theme.  And so, we'll have agencies

            8   from around the country come in and participate

            9   in the training.  We've partnered with the

           10   Governor's Council on -- for people with

           11   disabilities, and so, we'll be doing a hybrid

           12   piece there.  We think that's exciting.  And

           13   we'll deal with a lot of topics that we -- that

           14   deal with civil rights and what we do here at the

           15   agency, as well as some of the things that deal

           16   with disability and making sure things are

           17   accessible.

           18          So, it's been a really good year, and

           19   David will talk a little bit about the

           20   legislation that we've been looking at and what

           21   we're trying to do with collecting data.  So,

           22   this is an exciting year, I will tell everybody,

           23   and we think the past has been great, the
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            1   future's going to be even better.

            2          And remember, this year our theme is

            3   humanity.  I mean we've talked about that.  We --

            4   even though we do this work, we still want to put

            5   out a positive message to others, because it is

            6   about how we treat one another, it is -- humanity

            7   will change how we treat people and help to

            8   eradicate discrimination.  So, we try to do those

            9   types of things in our messaging so that it's

           10   positive.

           11          So, any questions for me before I turn it

           12   over to David?

           13                     (No response.)

           14               MR. WILSON:  I'm going to --

           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any --

           16   are there any questions on the line?

           17                     (No response.)

           18               MR. WILSON:  Okay.  I'm going to turn

           19   it over to David, and I'm --

           20               COMM. RAMOS:  I don't have any

           21   questions.

           22               MR. WILSON:  And I apologize; I'm

           23   going over --
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            1               COMM. HARRINGTON:  No, there are no

            2   questions.  I just wanted to give you guys kudos

            3   for everything that you guys did last year, and

            4   I'm looking forward to seeing that you continue.

            5   Your kickoff of MLK with your program was

            6   phenomenal, and we look forward to the things to

            7   come.

            8               MR. WILSON:  And thanks for the

            9   gloves, Holli, and the support for the airport

           10   with gloves.  This winter wasn't as bad as we had

           11   in previous years.  Chair Slash, you know.

           12   You've --

           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yep.

           14               MR. WILSON:  -- been there, and so --

           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  We did great this

           16   year.  It was very pleasant to be outside, it was

           17   mild, misty.

           18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  But anyway, I'm

           19   going to that same event that Holli's headed to,

           20   so, again, I want to listen and be a part of

           21   what's happening there.  So, thank you, everyone.

           22          David, you'll finish?

           23               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Absolutely.
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            1   Thank you, Chair Slash.

            2          A couple of updates on some projects.

            3   Like Greg mentioned, we have the CMS enhancements

            4   that we're working on, our Case Management

            5   System, so a lot of those enhancements have been

            6   implemented, and now our staff are working within

            7   those, so that's going to better enable us to

            8   move cases through that process and track things

            9   within it.

           10          We really didn't have a litigation section

           11   in there before, but now we do, so we're going

           12   to -- our attorneys are going to be able to have

           13   things in there and move cases along, and we're

           14   going to be able to generate reports more easily

           15   and look at metrics and those kind of things.

           16   So, we're excited about the new capabilities that

           17   we'll be able to have from that system.

           18          We also have the -- he mentioned the phone

           19   system.  It's the Genesis Cloud phone system, so

           20   it's a computer-based phone system, so we're

           21   going to be getting rid of our desktops -- our

           22   desk phones, essentially.  And currently

           23   January 26th, next Thursday, is our go-live date
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            1   for the new phone system, so we're excited about

            2   that.

            3          We're fine tuning that.  We're getting our

            4   staff trained on how to operate within it, but

            5   starting on January 26th, when somebody calls

            6   into our 1-800 number or the general 317-233-2600

            7   number, then it'll go into the automated

            8   answering system, and then farm staff out to

            9   wherever they need to go within that, based on

           10   who they want to talk to.

           11          We do have -- we just finalized some

           12   contracts for engaging in housing testing, a

           13   testing program.  We've partnered with Indiana

           14   Housing and Community Development Authority, and

           15   also procured some HUD funds for that, so we're

           16   working with an outside vendor who's going to

           17   hire the staff and everything to do the testing.

           18          So, they're going to be going to mainly

           19   IHCDA properties and do testing on various

           20   different discriminatory type actions, so that

           21   you have a control person and then the test

           22   person, and then see if there's a significant

           23   difference in between how they're treated, and
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            1   then based on that, we can -- that could generate

            2   director-initiated complaints, and then go ahead

            3   and investigate further.

            4          So, we're engaged in that.  We have

            5   essentially a two-year contract with a vendor to

            6   engage in testing per -- to the tune of about

            7   $275,000 worth of testing over the two years.

            8   So, we're excited about what that'll show and

            9   what type of impact that'll have.

           10          As far as some metrics go, we've been able

           11   to close out 2022, so I can kind of report on

           12   where we're at with end-of-the-year numbers, and

           13   to kind of give you a comparison of where we were

           14   in 2022 compared to 2021, in 2022, we had 2,470

           15   inquiries, and that was up from 2,365 in 2021, so

           16   about 105 increase.

           17          However, we were able to generate a

           18   significant more number of complaints this year.

           19   We had 790 complaints, formalized complaints, in

           20   2022, versus 507 in 2021.  That was a 56-percent

           21   increase in formalized complaints between the two

           22   years.

           23          Another, I think, pretty cool thing is
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            1   that in 2021, from those inquiries to complaints,

            2   that was about a 21.4 percent inquiry to

            3   formalized complaint realization versus 2022.  It

            4   was increased to a 32 percent.  So, more

            5   inquiries resulted in complaints being drafted

            6   from their contact with us.

            7          And then in 2022, we -- through our

            8   mediation services for our cases, the settlements

            9   that were entered into resulted in over $765,000

           10   worth of monetary relief for complainants, and

           11   that was up from 560,000 in 2021, so a 37-percent

           12   increase in monetary relief for complainants.

           13   And then we also closed 676 cases in 2022, which

           14   was an increase from 520 in 2021.

           15          So, a lot of work was done this past year,

           16   just in general, but also in comparison to 2021.

           17   You know, some of that may be attributed to more

           18   folks coming out of the pandemic and people more

           19   interacting with each other and just people being

           20   people, resulting in complaints and stuff, but

           21   we've also had a very -- a pretty stable staff

           22   this year and a very good staff, so I think that

           23   that's helped move cases along to generate those
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            1   numbers.

            2          We do have currently, or as of the end of

            3   December, 61 open litigation cases, and just to

            4   kind of give you a perspective over the year, at

            5   the beginning of 2022, in January, we had about

            6   45 open litigation cases.  At its peak, we were

            7   at about 75 open litigation cases during the

            8   middle of the year, and now we're back down to

            9   the low 60's, so, a product of getting things

           10   settled, moving things along, and all of that.

           11          Overall in 2022, we had about a

           12   ten-and-a-half percent cause finding rate as far

           13   as cases closed as a probable cause, so that's, I

           14   think, consistent with years past, but those are

           15   kind of metrics as far as some of the work that

           16   the operations side does.

           17          Greg mentioned that I am tracking kind of

           18   the legislative things that are going on right

           19   now.  We're in the middle of the General

           20   Assembly.  It just started a couple of weeks ago,

           21   so there's several bills that have potential

           22   impact for the work that we do within the

           23   Commission.
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            1          So, we'll see kind of where they go or if

            2   they proceed, some looking at equal pay

            3   discrimination, some looking at some things more

            4   in the education article, but they talk about the

            5   discrimination stuff, so it may bleed over into

            6   what we do as far as investigating discrimination

            7   within the education area, even though it's not

            8   specifically within our chapter.

            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Can I ask a quick

           10   question --

           11               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.

           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- about that?

           13   In those cases, would that mean that the ICRC

           14   would be a part of testimony or a recommendation

           15   before testimony is accepted on the types of

           16   things that could lead something back here very

           17   quickly?

           18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Are you talking

           19   about like within the General Assembly?

           20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yeah, as they are

           21   working through the bill formation process.

           22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.  So, we

           23   work with the Governor's Office as far as whether
�



                                                                29



            1   or not we would provide testimony for any

            2   particular committee hearing on a particular

            3   bill.  Sometimes the committee may request an

            4   agency to come in and talk about a bill's impact

            5   on that agency, and then we would coordinate that

            6   with the Governor's Office as far as providing

            7   that testimony and making sure that what we're

            8   seeing is aligned with what the Governor's Office

            9   has for its kind of legislative priorities and

           10   everything.

           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.

           12               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  So, you know, we

           13   may get asked to talk about a couple of these,

           14   but some -- many of these may not even see a

           15   committee hearing, so it depends on kind of what

           16   the chair of that committee wants to do as far as

           17   hearing bills.

           18          There's one that would directly impact

           19   this Commission, but it's an impact of all

           20   commissions and agencies, but it's a bill that

           21   would require all meetings like this to be

           22   transmitted live and to be recorded, and then the

           23   recordings of that transmission of that public
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            1   meeting to be maintained for three years, and

            2   then sent over to Archives after that.

            3          So, that's something that's out there, so,

            4   again, with all of the other bills that I'm

            5   tracking, it's one of those that I'm tracking,

            6   but it's one that would have direct impact on

            7   this Commission and -- but we're already doing

            8   live transmissions, but we would just continue

            9   that practice, and then there's that archival

           10   aspect of it post-meeting.

           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there anything

           12   possibly going through the General Assembly that

           13   would also allow commissions to meet virtually a

           14   hundred percent?

           15               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  No.

           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No one has

           17   brought that up at all?

           18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  That is not in

           19   any of the bills that I've seen.

           20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That's insane.

           21   Okay.  I just -- I have so many questions.  I

           22   have asked the Governor's staff this question

           23   directly, because all commissions probably had
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            1   great attendance rates when they were virtual,

            2   and they've likely gone back to poor attendance.

            3               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  (Nodded yes.)

            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  My small

            5   bone to pick here.  Small; right?

            6               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Right.

            7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Specifically, we

            8   want people from all over the state to

            9   participate in these hearings.

           10               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  So, like I said,

           11   I'm monitoring all of the bills that I believe

           12   have some type of impact on the work that we do

           13   here within the Commission, so as things kind of

           14   move through the process, I'll update the

           15   Commission at future meetings as far as where

           16   they stand and what's going on with those.

           17          And then at the last Commission meeting we

           18   talked a little bit about translation services,

           19   because I had mentioned that with the new phone

           20   call system, we're going to have a Spanish option

           21   for callers so that they can go through that.  I

           22   did find out that in 2022 we spent roughly $530

           23   on translation services.  We're currently going
�
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            1   through kind of the invoices and stuff to see how

            2   that breaks down, but just like one invoice from

            3   December of 2021, there were six instances where

            4   we used the translation service, and that equated

            5   to about $42 worth of cost for that service.

            6          So, we'll look to generate a little bit

            7   more specific numbers as far as how frequently

            8   the translation service is being used, but I know

            9   the Commission had asked that last time, so I

           10   wanted to just give an update on that we're

           11   looking at it and trying to see if we can get a

           12   better number for that for the Commission.

           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That number could

           14   either represent an underrepresented population

           15   or maybe a -- they just don't know that the

           16   translation exists and how easy it is to access.

           17   It could be all things; right?

           18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah, and like

           19   even this December one, all of the calls on that,

           20   or all of the interactions, four out of the six

           21   were one of our staff attorneys talking with

           22   complainants or aggrieved persons, and then two

           23   of them were one of our mediation staff --
�
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

            2               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- working

            3   through the mediation process.  So, it doesn't

            4   look like any of those were like our intake staff

            5   talking with a complainant calling in for an

            6   inquiry, but those do happen, but we also have

            7   some Spanish-speaking staff --

            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.

            9               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- who are here,

           10   who -- frequently calls are routed to them for

           11   that interaction if possible, so --

           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  So, that

           13   speaks to staff, and that -- I had an additional

           14   question, but I think that just answered it.

           15               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.

           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any

           17   questions for David or questions that we may want

           18   to ask David that he can answer on behalf of

           19   Executive Director Wilson?

           20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I have just a

           21   comment.  I think that like over the years we

           22   could draw a pretty close parallel between the

           23   number of complaints and inquiries to the various
�
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            1   effective outreach and educational work that the

            2   Commission has done.  So, I think we should

            3   remember to put it in perspective, that when it

            4   seems like we're not making progress, actually it

            5   reflects through the numbers that we are making

            6   progress.

            7               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  And I would agree

            8   with that.  Our education and outreach efforts

            9   definitely increased last year, which may be

           10   another contributing factor to why we had

           11   increase -- an increase in complaints, so --

           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes.

           13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- absolutely.

           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.

           15          No other questions?

           16                     (No response.)

           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And I -- we don't

           18   have anyone from the public on the line or in

           19   person, so no need to call for public comments.

           20          I'll make just a brief personal point of

           21   privilege.  Thank you, Vice-Chair Ramos, for

           22   coming out last week.  Comm. Harrington is off.

           23   She was also around last week as well.  I was
�
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            1   able to be around for the first time in years, so

            2   a job well done.  I know that as staff, there are

            3   many staff members that took part, and those of

            4   you who showed up after hours, I appreciate you

            5   for that as well.

            6          Oh, you were around, too, that's right.

            7   You came with us too.  Thank you.  Thanks for

            8   being there.

            9               COMM. JACKSON:  You're welcome.

           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Other than that,

           11   I think this was a light meeting, but it was well

           12   run.  Thank you for your time.

           13          Thank you, everyone on the phone.

           14          Vice-Chair Ramos, enjoy your vacation.

           15               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.

           16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It is -- let's

           17   see -- 1:41.  I will call this meeting adjourned.

           18                        -  -  -
                          Thereupon, the proceedings of
           19            January 20, 2023 were concluded
                               at 1:41 o'clock p.m.
           20                        -  -  -

           21

           22

           23
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 1                                   1:11 o'clock p.m.


                                     January 20, 2023


 2                        -  -  -


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  It is 1:11


 4   on Friday, January 20th.  I call this meeting of


 5   the Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.


 6   And just for the sake of our quorum and being


 7   able to conduct business, I'd like for us to skip


 8   directly to Old Business, and we will come


 9   back -- well, can we start with having our --


10               MS. AFUWAPE:  Meeting --


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- quorum


12   established?


13               MS. AFUWAPE:  Yeah.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm sorry.


15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  All right.  Approval


16   of the previous meeting minutes from last month's


17   Commissioners meeting.


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a


19   motion?


20               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


22          Is there a second?


23               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.


ACCURATE REPORTING OF INDIANA







Page 4


 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.


 3          Comm. Blackburn?


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Comm. Blackburn,


 5   we are calling for a vote on the approval of last


 6   month's meeting minutes.


 7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye.


 8               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


10               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?


11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.


12               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?


13               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


16               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Approval of previous


17   minutes.


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


19          And now we'll go ahead and start with Old


20   Business.  Okay.  The first case was assigned --


21   the first case, Julia Chachere versus Indiana


22   Wesleyan University, Case EDha22080430, was


23   assigned to Vice-Chair Ramos, and he sent in his
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 1   recommendation.


 2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  His recommendation


 3   was to uphold the notice of finding of probable


 4   cause on both issues.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 6          Is there a motion?


 7               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 9          Is there a second?


10               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.


11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second.


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


13               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.


14          Comm. Blackburn?


15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye.


16               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?


17               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?


19               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.


20               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?


21               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


22               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
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 1               MR. LOSTUTTER:  It is approved.


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Perfect.


 3          The next one, Alicy -- Alicity Golston


 4   versus Towne Properties Asset Management Company,


 5   Case EMra22040192.  The case was assigned to me,


 6   and it's my recommendation that we uphold the


 7   Deputy Director's finding of no probable cause.


 8               MR. LOSTUTTER:  And --


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a


10   motion?


11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  So moved.


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


13               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Second?


14               COMM. JACKSON:  Second.


15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.


16          Comm. Blackburn?


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. --


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And we have


20   Vice-Chair Ramos now.


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.


22          Vice-Chair Ramos?


23                     (No response.)
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 1               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is


 2   Comm. Harrington.


 3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.


 4               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Whoever's calling


 5   the vote, we can bare -- I can barely hear them.


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 7               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?


 8               MR. WILSON:  Okay.  Sit over here.


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


10               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?


11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.


12               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?


13               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


16          The next case --


17               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Upheld.


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


19          The next case, William A. Pumphrey, Jr.


20   Versus Dunkin Donuts, Case PAhra22040266.  The


21   case was assigned to Comm. Tolliver, and he sends


22   his recommendation in ahead.


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  He -- his
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 1   recommendation was to uphold the notice of


 2   findings, no probable cause.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 4          Is there a motion?


 5               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 7          Is there a second?


 8               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second.


10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Second.


11               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll take the roll.


12          Comm. Blackburn?


13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?


15               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,


16   aye.


17               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?


18               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


19               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?


20               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Upheld.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 2          The next case, Keith McCoy versus EHOB,


 3   Inc., Case EMse22060311.  The case was assigned


 4   to Comm. Silberberg.


 5               COMM. SILBERBERG:  I uphold the


 6   decision of no probable cause.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 8          Is there a motion?


 9               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a


11   second?


12               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second,


13   Comm. Harrington.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  I'll call the roll.


16          Comm. Blackburn?


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?


19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,


20   aye.


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?


22               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
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 1               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.


 2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 4               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Motion's upheld.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 6          The next case, under Motions and Other


 7   Filings, we have Andria Moss versus Greyhound


 8   Bus Terminal/Miller Transportation,


 9   Case PAha21110432.  I would like to continue this


10   case.  This was a case that Comm. Tolliver was


11   assigned and Comm. Tolliver would like to take an


12   action on.  He's not present, so I'd like to


13   continue this until Comm. Tolliver is present for


14   a meeting.


15          Okay.  I don't have to do any further


16   action; right?


17                     (No response.)


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Welcome,


19   Vice-Chair Ramos.  You're supposed to be on


20   vacation.


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Can you hear us?


22               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.  I'm trying.


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 2          All right.  So, moving to New Business,


 3   under Motions and Other Filings, in the case of


 4   Shantana Maxwell versus Greystone Property


 5   Management, Case HOha22110651, the Respondent has


 6   made a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction


 7   and Supplemental Answer to Complaint of


 8   Discrimination.


 9          The Complainant has not responded to that


10   request, and so, I've been asked to consider to


11   grant or deny dismissal, and I would like to deny


12   the dismissal on behalf of the Commission so that


13   the Complainant can be heard through


14   investigation.  I believe that was my action.


15               MS. AFUWAPE:  Yes.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Very good.


17          So, the next set that we have are


18   Administrative Law Judge Orders, and we do need


19   to vote to affirm, remand or amend on this;


20   right?


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Well, the objection


22   period in this matter has not yet closed, so --


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Oh.
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 1               MR. LOSTUTTER:  -- no action --


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No action --


 3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  -- required at this


 4   time.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- at this time.


 6   Fabulous.


 7          Okay.  The rest of these were


 8   automatically confirmed --


 9               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Yes.


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- and there's a


11   good amount of them.  I'll do my best to read


12   them and get Vice-Chair Ramos back to vacation so


13   he doesn't have to vote on anything.


14          The first case, Wendy Morrow versus Qdoba


15   Restaurant Corporation d/b/a Qdoba Mexican Eats,


16   Case EMsh19050294.  That case was automatically


17   confirmed.  I'm just reading it into the record.


18          The next one, Case ICRC/Saulo Barbosa -- I


19   hope I did that right -- versus NWIAPTS LLC d/b/a


20   Park Place Apartments, Case HOha22060303.


21          The next case, Marland Ratekin versus


22   Dellen Chevrolet Buick GMC, that's


23   Case PAha22060328.
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 1          And the last one, ICRC/Lily Rosati Yoos


 2   versus Beta -- let get me get myself -- what is


 3   it -- Beta XI Chapter of Gamma Delta Fraternity


 4   House Association, Inc. & Beta XI Chapter of


 5   Alpha Gamma Delta, and that concludes our section


 6   of the ones that were already confirmed by the


 7   ALJ.  I just needed to read them into the record.


 8          While I have all of you on the line and


 9   while we're present before we get to the


10   Directors' Report, going back to the beginning,


11   next month's meeting is February 17th.  That


12   leads into the President's Day holiday weekend.


13   If there's any travel plans to not be available,


14   is there anyone who cannot confirm attendance,


15   whether in person or virtual, on Friday,


16   February 17th?


17                     (No response.)


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I will raise my


19   hand and say I'll be present in person.


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'll be able to be


21   present live.


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


23               COMM. SILBERBERG:  I will be present
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 1   in person.


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


 3          Anyone -- well, we have three in person,


 4   that's great.  Hopefully Comm. Tolliver can make


 5   it as well.  Does anyone have conflict being


 6   virtual?  Because we'll need at least one there.


 7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  When?


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  February 17th.


 9               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Oh.


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Will you able to


11   join us, Comm. Blackburn?


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes --


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- I hope to be


15   there.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I plan to be in


18   town.


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


20               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, this is


21   Vice-Chair Ramos.


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.


23               COMM. RAMOS:  My schedule for the
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 1   17th of February is uncertain at this time.


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 3               COMM. RAMOS:  So, I can neither


 4   confirm or not confirm at this time.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We'll


 6   leave it until we send out the meeting


 7   announcement, and we'll be pending on your


 8   participation at that time.


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.  Okay.  I


11   think, Vice-Chair Ramos, you mentioned in your


12   message to me there was a concern with public


13   comment, or was that what you -- you were trying


14   to get in on the line?


15               COMM. RAMOS:  I wasn't able to dial


16   in --


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Oh, okay.


18               COMM. RAMOS:  -- for whatever reason,


19   so I'm -- but I'm able to finally connect by this


20   means, so we're okay.


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Perfect.


22          While I have everyone still participating


23   on the line, are there any announcements?
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 1                     (No response.)


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Now I'd


 3   like to take us back to the top of our agenda for


 4   the ICRC Director's Report.  We were done voting,


 5   so if there's anyone who is pressed to get to


 6   another place, please feel free to do so, but I


 7   would love for you to stay on just to listen in


 8   to this report as well.


 9               MR. WILSON:  Are you ready, Chair?


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.


11               MR. WILSON:  All right.


12          Thank you, again, Commissioners.  I


13   appreciate you sacrificing your time being here


14   and to do this great work.


15          I just wanted to update you.  The -- one


16   is, we're just happy with our MLK celebration.


17   We thought that it was very well attended, the


18   events went over very well.  I want to thank


19   those Commissioners who were able to attend.


20   Again, it was one of our best, I believe.  You


21   got to see some of our work from the data


22   service, which we will be doing again this year.


23          We're already in preparations for the
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 1   two-day Day of Service in September, so hopefully


 2   you'll put that in your calendar somewhere in


 3   September, come out and join us.  We expect even


 4   a bigger turnout, and that's all because of the


 5   Governor's -- when he did the two days for Days


 6   of Service now, and so we're very thankful for


 7   that.


 8          So, anyway, we are moving forward to our


 9   next two.  I think we have the Black History


10   Month, and then we have Disability Month, and


11   then we have Fair Housing Month.  We're still on


12   the radio up in Northern Indiana, on WLTH, where


13   we talk about fair housing and what we do here at


14   Civil Rights also.


15          We are here on every Saturday -- I mean


16   every second Saturday of the month on 1310 AM


17   with Tom Brown, where we talk about what we do


18   here at the agency.  We had a very successful, I


19   believe, marketing campaign around the state.  It


20   was a strategic marketing campaign, where we


21   focused on cities that we hadn't really had any


22   complaints from, like Richmond and Kokomo and


23   some other areas in the surrounding counties,
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 1   like Marion, Anderson, and we thought that was


 2   very important that we kind of focus on those


 3   areas.  So, we'll be gathering the data and


 4   trying to look how effective that campaign was


 5   based on the complaints that come in and where


 6   they came from.  So, you can look forward to some


 7   data on that.


 8          The agencies and -- this agency, which a


 9   lot of the new talent we have, we're very


10   fortunate to have gotten David here, who is now


11   the -- you know, been here for almost, what,


12   David; two years.


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Just over a year.


14               MR. WILSON:  Over a year?  Well, it


15   seems like ten years.


16                      (Laughter.)


17               MR. WILSON:  But this thing will grow


18   on you.  But he helps so much, him and Erik and


19   Stephanie, the leadership team has helped so much


20   in coming up with new ideas to help us move the


21   agency forward.  This year right here is the year


22   of implementation, so everything from our new


23   systems to the phone system, which David can
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 1   elaborate when he talks about it, because him and


 2   Erik have been the architect of that, making sure


 3   that everything was in place.


 4          You see we continue to bring new


 5   technology into the agency.  Like I said,


 6   everybody has a laptop, really pretty, and they


 7   can work from home two days a week, and we've


 8   tried to create an enjoyable atmosphere, where we


 9   know people have to come to work to do their job,


10   but at the same time, you can make it pleasant.


11   We think we're being very successful with that.


12          The External Affairs group has been


13   incredible.  You know, a lot of the videos you've


14   seen, we do them in-house now, we have the


15   technology, and actually we're going to set up


16   our studio in the back, where we can record our


17   own PSA's.  We've already got the equipment, it's


18   just moving some things out, where we'll record


19   our own PSA's, and even do some public


20   broadcasting back there.  So, we have some


21   long-term plans just to make this agency a


22   premier agency.


23          We've been partnering with other agencies
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 1   around the country with trying to find out better


 2   ideas, better solutions, and vice-versa, sharing


 3   what we do here with those agencies.  And so,


 4   it's been a real successful partnership.


 5          We're planning for the conference, so


 6   that's in June, Juneteenth, kind of based on the


 7   Juneteenth theme.  And so, we'll have agencies


 8   from around the country come in and participate


 9   in the training.  We've partnered with the


10   Governor's Council on -- for people with


11   disabilities, and so, we'll be doing a hybrid


12   piece there.  We think that's exciting.  And


13   we'll deal with a lot of topics that we -- that


14   deal with civil rights and what we do here at the


15   agency, as well as some of the things that deal


16   with disability and making sure things are


17   accessible.


18          So, it's been a really good year, and


19   David will talk a little bit about the


20   legislation that we've been looking at and what


21   we're trying to do with collecting data.  So,


22   this is an exciting year, I will tell everybody,


23   and we think the past has been great, the
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 1   future's going to be even better.


 2          And remember, this year our theme is


 3   humanity.  I mean we've talked about that.  We --


 4   even though we do this work, we still want to put


 5   out a positive message to others, because it is


 6   about how we treat one another, it is -- humanity


 7   will change how we treat people and help to


 8   eradicate discrimination.  So, we try to do those


 9   types of things in our messaging so that it's


10   positive.


11          So, any questions for me before I turn it


12   over to David?


13                     (No response.)


14               MR. WILSON:  I'm going to --


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any --


16   are there any questions on the line?


17                     (No response.)


18               MR. WILSON:  Okay.  I'm going to turn


19   it over to David, and I'm --


20               COMM. RAMOS:  I don't have any


21   questions.


22               MR. WILSON:  And I apologize; I'm


23   going over --
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 1               COMM. HARRINGTON:  No, there are no


 2   questions.  I just wanted to give you guys kudos


 3   for everything that you guys did last year, and


 4   I'm looking forward to seeing that you continue.


 5   Your kickoff of MLK with your program was


 6   phenomenal, and we look forward to the things to


 7   come.


 8               MR. WILSON:  And thanks for the


 9   gloves, Holli, and the support for the airport


10   with gloves.  This winter wasn't as bad as we had


11   in previous years.  Chair Slash, you know.


12   You've --


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yep.


14               MR. WILSON:  -- been there, and so --


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  We did great this


16   year.  It was very pleasant to be outside, it was


17   mild, misty.


18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  But anyway, I'm


19   going to that same event that Holli's headed to,


20   so, again, I want to listen and be a part of


21   what's happening there.  So, thank you, everyone.


22          David, you'll finish?


23               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Absolutely.
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 1   Thank you, Chair Slash.


 2          A couple of updates on some projects.


 3   Like Greg mentioned, we have the CMS enhancements


 4   that we're working on, our Case Management


 5   System, so a lot of those enhancements have been


 6   implemented, and now our staff are working within


 7   those, so that's going to better enable us to


 8   move cases through that process and track things


 9   within it.


10          We really didn't have a litigation section


11   in there before, but now we do, so we're going


12   to -- our attorneys are going to be able to have


13   things in there and move cases along, and we're


14   going to be able to generate reports more easily


15   and look at metrics and those kind of things.


16   So, we're excited about the new capabilities that


17   we'll be able to have from that system.


18          We also have the -- he mentioned the phone


19   system.  It's the Genesis Cloud phone system, so


20   it's a computer-based phone system, so we're


21   going to be getting rid of our desktops -- our


22   desk phones, essentially.  And currently


23   January 26th, next Thursday, is our go-live date
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 1   for the new phone system, so we're excited about


 2   that.


 3          We're fine tuning that.  We're getting our


 4   staff trained on how to operate within it, but


 5   starting on January 26th, when somebody calls


 6   into our 1-800 number or the general 317-233-2600


 7   number, then it'll go into the automated


 8   answering system, and then farm staff out to


 9   wherever they need to go within that, based on


10   who they want to talk to.


11          We do have -- we just finalized some


12   contracts for engaging in housing testing, a


13   testing program.  We've partnered with Indiana


14   Housing and Community Development Authority, and


15   also procured some HUD funds for that, so we're


16   working with an outside vendor who's going to


17   hire the staff and everything to do the testing.


18          So, they're going to be going to mainly


19   IHCDA properties and do testing on various


20   different discriminatory type actions, so that


21   you have a control person and then the test


22   person, and then see if there's a significant


23   difference in between how they're treated, and
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 1   then based on that, we can -- that could generate


 2   director-initiated complaints, and then go ahead


 3   and investigate further.


 4          So, we're engaged in that.  We have


 5   essentially a two-year contract with a vendor to


 6   engage in testing per -- to the tune of about


 7   $275,000 worth of testing over the two years.


 8   So, we're excited about what that'll show and


 9   what type of impact that'll have.


10          As far as some metrics go, we've been able


11   to close out 2022, so I can kind of report on


12   where we're at with end-of-the-year numbers, and


13   to kind of give you a comparison of where we were


14   in 2022 compared to 2021, in 2022, we had 2,470


15   inquiries, and that was up from 2,365 in 2021, so


16   about 105 increase.


17          However, we were able to generate a


18   significant more number of complaints this year.


19   We had 790 complaints, formalized complaints, in


20   2022, versus 507 in 2021.  That was a 56-percent


21   increase in formalized complaints between the two


22   years.


23          Another, I think, pretty cool thing is
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 1   that in 2021, from those inquiries to complaints,


 2   that was about a 21.4 percent inquiry to


 3   formalized complaint realization versus 2022.  It


 4   was increased to a 32 percent.  So, more


 5   inquiries resulted in complaints being drafted


 6   from their contact with us.


 7          And then in 2022, we -- through our


 8   mediation services for our cases, the settlements


 9   that were entered into resulted in over $765,000


10   worth of monetary relief for complainants, and


11   that was up from 560,000 in 2021, so a 37-percent


12   increase in monetary relief for complainants.


13   And then we also closed 676 cases in 2022, which


14   was an increase from 520 in 2021.


15          So, a lot of work was done this past year,


16   just in general, but also in comparison to 2021.


17   You know, some of that may be attributed to more


18   folks coming out of the pandemic and people more


19   interacting with each other and just people being


20   people, resulting in complaints and stuff, but


21   we've also had a very -- a pretty stable staff


22   this year and a very good staff, so I think that


23   that's helped move cases along to generate those
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 1   numbers.


 2          We do have currently, or as of the end of


 3   December, 61 open litigation cases, and just to


 4   kind of give you a perspective over the year, at


 5   the beginning of 2022, in January, we had about


 6   45 open litigation cases.  At its peak, we were


 7   at about 75 open litigation cases during the


 8   middle of the year, and now we're back down to


 9   the low 60's, so, a product of getting things


10   settled, moving things along, and all of that.


11          Overall in 2022, we had about a


12   ten-and-a-half percent cause finding rate as far


13   as cases closed as a probable cause, so that's, I


14   think, consistent with years past, but those are


15   kind of metrics as far as some of the work that


16   the operations side does.


17          Greg mentioned that I am tracking kind of


18   the legislative things that are going on right


19   now.  We're in the middle of the General


20   Assembly.  It just started a couple of weeks ago,


21   so there's several bills that have potential


22   impact for the work that we do within the


23   Commission.
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 1          So, we'll see kind of where they go or if


 2   they proceed, some looking at equal pay


 3   discrimination, some looking at some things more


 4   in the education article, but they talk about the


 5   discrimination stuff, so it may bleed over into


 6   what we do as far as investigating discrimination


 7   within the education area, even though it's not


 8   specifically within our chapter.


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Can I ask a quick


10   question --


11               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- about that?


13   In those cases, would that mean that the ICRC


14   would be a part of testimony or a recommendation


15   before testimony is accepted on the types of


16   things that could lead something back here very


17   quickly?


18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Are you talking


19   about like within the General Assembly?


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yeah, as they are


21   working through the bill formation process.


22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.  So, we


23   work with the Governor's Office as far as whether
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 1   or not we would provide testimony for any


 2   particular committee hearing on a particular


 3   bill.  Sometimes the committee may request an


 4   agency to come in and talk about a bill's impact


 5   on that agency, and then we would coordinate that


 6   with the Governor's Office as far as providing


 7   that testimony and making sure that what we're


 8   seeing is aligned with what the Governor's Office


 9   has for its kind of legislative priorities and


10   everything.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


12               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  So, you know, we


13   may get asked to talk about a couple of these,


14   but some -- many of these may not even see a


15   committee hearing, so it depends on kind of what


16   the chair of that committee wants to do as far as


17   hearing bills.


18          There's one that would directly impact


19   this Commission, but it's an impact of all


20   commissions and agencies, but it's a bill that


21   would require all meetings like this to be


22   transmitted live and to be recorded, and then the


23   recordings of that transmission of that public
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 1   meeting to be maintained for three years, and


 2   then sent over to Archives after that.


 3          So, that's something that's out there, so,


 4   again, with all of the other bills that I'm


 5   tracking, it's one of those that I'm tracking,


 6   but it's one that would have direct impact on


 7   this Commission and -- but we're already doing


 8   live transmissions, but we would just continue


 9   that practice, and then there's that archival


10   aspect of it post-meeting.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there anything


12   possibly going through the General Assembly that


13   would also allow commissions to meet virtually a


14   hundred percent?


15               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  No.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No one has


17   brought that up at all?


18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  That is not in


19   any of the bills that I've seen.


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That's insane.


21   Okay.  I just -- I have so many questions.  I


22   have asked the Governor's staff this question


23   directly, because all commissions probably had
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 1   great attendance rates when they were virtual,


 2   and they've likely gone back to poor attendance.


 3               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  (Nodded yes.)


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  My small


 5   bone to pick here.  Small; right?


 6               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Right.


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Specifically, we


 8   want people from all over the state to


 9   participate in these hearings.


10               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  So, like I said,


11   I'm monitoring all of the bills that I believe


12   have some type of impact on the work that we do


13   here within the Commission, so as things kind of


14   move through the process, I'll update the


15   Commission at future meetings as far as where


16   they stand and what's going on with those.


17          And then at the last Commission meeting we


18   talked a little bit about translation services,


19   because I had mentioned that with the new phone


20   call system, we're going to have a Spanish option


21   for callers so that they can go through that.  I


22   did find out that in 2022 we spent roughly $530


23   on translation services.  We're currently going
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 1   through kind of the invoices and stuff to see how


 2   that breaks down, but just like one invoice from


 3   December of 2021, there were six instances where


 4   we used the translation service, and that equated


 5   to about $42 worth of cost for that service.


 6          So, we'll look to generate a little bit


 7   more specific numbers as far as how frequently


 8   the translation service is being used, but I know


 9   the Commission had asked that last time, so I


10   wanted to just give an update on that we're


11   looking at it and trying to see if we can get a


12   better number for that for the Commission.


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That number could


14   either represent an underrepresented population


15   or maybe a -- they just don't know that the


16   translation exists and how easy it is to access.


17   It could be all things; right?


18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah, and like


19   even this December one, all of the calls on that,


20   or all of the interactions, four out of the six


21   were one of our staff attorneys talking with


22   complainants or aggrieved persons, and then two


23   of them were one of our mediation staff --
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 2               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- working


 3   through the mediation process.  So, it doesn't


 4   look like any of those were like our intake staff


 5   talking with a complainant calling in for an


 6   inquiry, but those do happen, but we also have


 7   some Spanish-speaking staff --


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 9               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- who are here,


10   who -- frequently calls are routed to them for


11   that interaction if possible, so --


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  So, that


13   speaks to staff, and that -- I had an additional


14   question, but I think that just answered it.


15               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any


17   questions for David or questions that we may want


18   to ask David that he can answer on behalf of


19   Executive Director Wilson?


20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I have just a


21   comment.  I think that like over the years we


22   could draw a pretty close parallel between the


23   number of complaints and inquiries to the various
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 1   effective outreach and educational work that the


 2   Commission has done.  So, I think we should


 3   remember to put it in perspective, that when it


 4   seems like we're not making progress, actually it


 5   reflects through the numbers that we are making


 6   progress.


 7               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  And I would agree


 8   with that.  Our education and outreach efforts


 9   definitely increased last year, which may be


10   another contributing factor to why we had


11   increase -- an increase in complaints, so --


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes.


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- absolutely.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


15          No other questions?


16                     (No response.)


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And I -- we don't


18   have anyone from the public on the line or in


19   person, so no need to call for public comments.


20          I'll make just a brief personal point of


21   privilege.  Thank you, Vice-Chair Ramos, for


22   coming out last week.  Comm. Harrington is off.


23   She was also around last week as well.  I was
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 1   able to be around for the first time in years, so
 2   a job well done.  I know that as staff, there are
 3   many staff members that took part, and those of
 4   you who showed up after hours, I appreciate you
 5   for that as well.
 6          Oh, you were around, too, that's right.
 7   You came with us too.  Thank you.  Thanks for
 8   being there.
 9               COMM. JACKSON:  You're welcome.
10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Other than that,
11   I think this was a light meeting, but it was well
12   run.  Thank you for your time.
13          Thank you, everyone on the phone.
14          Vice-Chair Ramos, enjoy your vacation.
15               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It is -- let's
17   see -- 1:41.  I will call this meeting adjourned.
18                        -  -  -
               Thereupon, the proceedings of
19            January 20, 2023 were concluded
                    at 1:41 o'clock p.m.
20                        -  -  -
21
22
23
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 1                                   1:11 o'clock p.m.
                                   January 20, 2023


 2                        -  -  -
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  It is 1:11
  


 4   on Friday, January 20th.  I call this meeting of
  


 5   the Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.
  


 6   And just for the sake of our quorum and being
  


 7   able to conduct business, I'd like for us to skip
  


 8   directly to Old Business, and we will come
  


 9   back -- well, can we start with having our --
  


10               MS. AFUWAPE:  Meeting --
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- quorum
  


12   established?
  


13               MS. AFUWAPE:  Yeah.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm sorry.
  


15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  All right.  Approval
  


16   of the previous meeting minutes from last month's
  


17   Commissioners meeting.
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a
  


19   motion?
  


20               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


22          Is there a second?
  


23               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.
  


 3          Comm. Blackburn?
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Comm. Blackburn,
  


 5   we are calling for a vote on the approval of last
  


 6   month's meeting minutes.
  


 7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye.
  


 8               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?
  


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


10               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
  


11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.
  


12               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?
  


13               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


16               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Approval of previous
  


17   minutes.
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


19          And now we'll go ahead and start with Old
  


20   Business.  Okay.  The first case was assigned --
  


21   the first case, Julia Chachere versus Indiana
  


22   Wesleyan University, Case EDha22080430, was
  


23   assigned to Vice-Chair Ramos, and he sent in his
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 1   recommendation.
  


 2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  His recommendation
  


 3   was to uphold the notice of finding of probable
  


 4   cause on both issues.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 6          Is there a motion?
  


 7               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 9          Is there a second?
  


10               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.
  


11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second.
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


13               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.
  


14          Comm. Blackburn?
  


15               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye.
  


16               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?
  


17               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
  


19               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.
  


20               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?
  


21               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


22               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
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 1               MR. LOSTUTTER:  It is approved.
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Perfect.
  


 3          The next one, Alicy -- Alicity Golston
  


 4   versus Towne Properties Asset Management Company,
  


 5   Case EMra22040192.  The case was assigned to me,
  


 6   and it's my recommendation that we uphold the
  


 7   Deputy Director's finding of no probable cause.
  


 8               MR. LOSTUTTER:  And --
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a
  


10   motion?
  


11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  So moved.
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


13               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Second?
  


14               COMM. JACKSON:  Second.
  


15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll call the roll.
  


16          Comm. Blackburn?
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. --
  


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And we have
  


20   Vice-Chair Ramos now.
  


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.
  


22          Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


23                     (No response.)
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 1               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is
  


 2   Comm. Harrington.
  


 3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.
  


 4               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Whoever's calling
  


 5   the vote, we can bare -- I can barely hear them.
  


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 7               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?
  


 8               MR. WILSON:  Okay.  Sit over here.
  


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


10               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
  


11               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.
  


12               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?
  


13               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


16          The next case --
  


17               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Upheld.
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


19          The next case, William A. Pumphrey, Jr.
  


20   Versus Dunkin Donuts, Case PAhra22040266.  The
  


21   case was assigned to Comm. Tolliver, and he sends
  


22   his recommendation in ahead.
  


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  He -- his
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 1   recommendation was to uphold the notice of
  


 2   findings, no probable cause.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 4          Is there a motion?
  


 5               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.
  


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 7          Is there a second?
  


 8               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Second.
  


 9               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second.
  


10               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Second.
  


11               MR. LOSTUTTER:  We'll take the roll.
  


12          Comm. Blackburn?
  


13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


14               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?
  


15               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,
  


16   aye.
  


17               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?
  


18               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


19               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
  


20               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.
  


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Upheld.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 2          The next case, Keith McCoy versus EHOB,
  


 3   Inc., Case EMse22060311.  The case was assigned
  


 4   to Comm. Silberberg.
  


 5               COMM. SILBERBERG:  I uphold the
  


 6   decision of no probable cause.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 8          Is there a motion?
  


 9               COMM. JACKSON:  So moved.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there a
  


11   second?
  


12               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Second,
  


13   Comm. Harrington.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


15               MR. LOSTUTTER:  I'll call the roll.
  


16          Comm. Blackburn?
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, aye.
  


18               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Harrington?
  


19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Comm. Harrington,
  


20   aye.
  


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Jackson?
  


22               COMM. JACKSON:  Aye.
  


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Comm. Silberberg?
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 1               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Aye.
  


 2               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Chair Slash?
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 4               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Motion's upheld.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 6          The next case, under Motions and Other
  


 7   Filings, we have Andria Moss versus Greyhound
  


 8   Bus Terminal/Miller Transportation,
  


 9   Case PAha21110432.  I would like to continue this
  


10   case.  This was a case that Comm. Tolliver was
  


11   assigned and Comm. Tolliver would like to take an
  


12   action on.  He's not present, so I'd like to
  


13   continue this until Comm. Tolliver is present for
  


14   a meeting.
  


15          Okay.  I don't have to do any further
  


16   action; right?
  


17                     (No response.)
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Welcome,
  


19   Vice-Chair Ramos.  You're supposed to be on
  


20   vacation.
  


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Can you hear us?
  


22               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.  I'm trying.
  


23               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Okay.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 2          All right.  So, moving to New Business,
  


 3   under Motions and Other Filings, in the case of
  


 4   Shantana Maxwell versus Greystone Property
  


 5   Management, Case HOha22110651, the Respondent has
  


 6   made a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Jurisdiction
  


 7   and Supplemental Answer to Complaint of
  


 8   Discrimination.
  


 9          The Complainant has not responded to that
  


10   request, and so, I've been asked to consider to
  


11   grant or deny dismissal, and I would like to deny
  


12   the dismissal on behalf of the Commission so that
  


13   the Complainant can be heard through
  


14   investigation.  I believe that was my action.
  


15               MS. AFUWAPE:  Yes.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Very good.
  


17          So, the next set that we have are
  


18   Administrative Law Judge Orders, and we do need
  


19   to vote to affirm, remand or amend on this;
  


20   right?
  


21               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Well, the objection
  


22   period in this matter has not yet closed, so --
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Oh.
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 1               MR. LOSTUTTER:  -- no action --
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No action --
  


 3               MR. LOSTUTTER:  -- required at this
  


 4   time.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- at this time.
  


 6   Fabulous.
  


 7          Okay.  The rest of these were
  


 8   automatically confirmed --
  


 9               MR. LOSTUTTER:  Yes.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- and there's a
  


11   good amount of them.  I'll do my best to read
  


12   them and get Vice-Chair Ramos back to vacation so
  


13   he doesn't have to vote on anything.
  


14          The first case, Wendy Morrow versus Qdoba
  


15   Restaurant Corporation d/b/a Qdoba Mexican Eats,
  


16   Case EMsh19050294.  That case was automatically
  


17   confirmed.  I'm just reading it into the record.
  


18          The next one, Case ICRC/Saulo Barbosa -- I
  


19   hope I did that right -- versus NWIAPTS LLC d/b/a
  


20   Park Place Apartments, Case HOha22060303.
  


21          The next case, Marland Ratekin versus
  


22   Dellen Chevrolet Buick GMC, that's
  


23   Case PAha22060328.
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 1          And the last one, ICRC/Lily Rosati Yoos
  


 2   versus Beta -- let get me get myself -- what is
  


 3   it -- Beta XI Chapter of Gamma Delta Fraternity
  


 4   House Association, Inc. & Beta XI Chapter of
  


 5   Alpha Gamma Delta, and that concludes our section
  


 6   of the ones that were already confirmed by the
  


 7   ALJ.  I just needed to read them into the record.
  


 8          While I have all of you on the line and
  


 9   while we're present before we get to the
  


10   Directors' Report, going back to the beginning,
  


11   next month's meeting is February 17th.  That
  


12   leads into the President's Day holiday weekend.
  


13   If there's any travel plans to not be available,
  


14   is there anyone who cannot confirm attendance,
  


15   whether in person or virtual, on Friday,
  


16   February 17th?
  


17                     (No response.)
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I will raise my
  


19   hand and say I'll be present in person.
  


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'll be able to be
  


21   present live.
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


23               COMM. SILBERBERG:  I will be present
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 1   in person.
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 3          Anyone -- well, we have three in person,
  


 4   that's great.  Hopefully Comm. Tolliver can make
  


 5   it as well.  Does anyone have conflict being
  


 6   virtual?  Because we'll need at least one there.
  


 7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  When?
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  February 17th.
  


 9               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Oh.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Will you able to
  


11   join us, Comm. Blackburn?
  


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes --
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


14               COMM. BLACKBURN:  -- I hope to be
  


15   there.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I plan to be in
  


18   town.
  


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


20               COMM. RAMOS:  Madam Chair, this is
  


21   Vice-Chair Ramos.
  


22               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.
  


23               COMM. RAMOS:  My schedule for the
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 1   17th of February is uncertain at this time.
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 3               COMM. RAMOS:  So, I can neither
  


 4   confirm or not confirm at this time.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  We'll
  


 6   leave it until we send out the meeting
  


 7   announcement, and we'll be pending on your
  


 8   participation at that time.
  


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.  Okay.  I
  


11   think, Vice-Chair Ramos, you mentioned in your
  


12   message to me there was a concern with public
  


13   comment, or was that what you -- you were trying
  


14   to get in on the line?
  


15               COMM. RAMOS:  I wasn't able to dial
  


16   in --
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Oh, okay.
  


18               COMM. RAMOS:  -- for whatever reason,
  


19   so I'm -- but I'm able to finally connect by this
  


20   means, so we're okay.
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Perfect.
  


22          While I have everyone still participating
  


23   on the line, are there any announcements?
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 1                     (No response.)
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Now I'd
  


 3   like to take us back to the top of our agenda for
  


 4   the ICRC Director's Report.  We were done voting,
  


 5   so if there's anyone who is pressed to get to
  


 6   another place, please feel free to do so, but I
  


 7   would love for you to stay on just to listen in
  


 8   to this report as well.
  


 9               MR. WILSON:  Are you ready, Chair?
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Uh-huh.
  


11               MR. WILSON:  All right.
  


12          Thank you, again, Commissioners.  I
  


13   appreciate you sacrificing your time being here
  


14   and to do this great work.
  


15          I just wanted to update you.  The -- one
  


16   is, we're just happy with our MLK celebration.
  


17   We thought that it was very well attended, the
  


18   events went over very well.  I want to thank
  


19   those Commissioners who were able to attend.
  


20   Again, it was one of our best, I believe.  You
  


21   got to see some of our work from the data
  


22   service, which we will be doing again this year.
  


23          We're already in preparations for the
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 1   two-day Day of Service in September, so hopefully
  


 2   you'll put that in your calendar somewhere in
  


 3   September, come out and join us.  We expect even
  


 4   a bigger turnout, and that's all because of the
  


 5   Governor's -- when he did the two days for Days
  


 6   of Service now, and so we're very thankful for
  


 7   that.
  


 8          So, anyway, we are moving forward to our
  


 9   next two.  I think we have the Black History
  


10   Month, and then we have Disability Month, and
  


11   then we have Fair Housing Month.  We're still on
  


12   the radio up in Northern Indiana, on WLTH, where
  


13   we talk about fair housing and what we do here at
  


14   Civil Rights also.
  


15          We are here on every Saturday -- I mean
  


16   every second Saturday of the month on 1310 AM
  


17   with Tom Brown, where we talk about what we do
  


18   here at the agency.  We had a very successful, I
  


19   believe, marketing campaign around the state.  It
  


20   was a strategic marketing campaign, where we
  


21   focused on cities that we hadn't really had any
  


22   complaints from, like Richmond and Kokomo and
  


23   some other areas in the surrounding counties,
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 1   like Marion, Anderson, and we thought that was
  


 2   very important that we kind of focus on those
  


 3   areas.  So, we'll be gathering the data and
  


 4   trying to look how effective that campaign was
  


 5   based on the complaints that come in and where
  


 6   they came from.  So, you can look forward to some
  


 7   data on that.
  


 8          The agencies and -- this agency, which a
  


 9   lot of the new talent we have, we're very
  


10   fortunate to have gotten David here, who is now
  


11   the -- you know, been here for almost, what,
  


12   David; two years.
  


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Just over a year.
  


14               MR. WILSON:  Over a year?  Well, it
  


15   seems like ten years.
  


16                      (Laughter.)
  


17               MR. WILSON:  But this thing will grow
  


18   on you.  But he helps so much, him and Erik and
  


19   Stephanie, the leadership team has helped so much
  


20   in coming up with new ideas to help us move the
  


21   agency forward.  This year right here is the year
  


22   of implementation, so everything from our new
  


23   systems to the phone system, which David can
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 1   elaborate when he talks about it, because him and
  


 2   Erik have been the architect of that, making sure
  


 3   that everything was in place.
  


 4          You see we continue to bring new
  


 5   technology into the agency.  Like I said,
  


 6   everybody has a laptop, really pretty, and they
  


 7   can work from home two days a week, and we've
  


 8   tried to create an enjoyable atmosphere, where we
  


 9   know people have to come to work to do their job,
  


10   but at the same time, you can make it pleasant.
  


11   We think we're being very successful with that.
  


12          The External Affairs group has been
  


13   incredible.  You know, a lot of the videos you've
  


14   seen, we do them in-house now, we have the
  


15   technology, and actually we're going to set up
  


16   our studio in the back, where we can record our
  


17   own PSA's.  We've already got the equipment, it's
  


18   just moving some things out, where we'll record
  


19   our own PSA's, and even do some public
  


20   broadcasting back there.  So, we have some
  


21   long-term plans just to make this agency a
  


22   premier agency.
  


23          We've been partnering with other agencies
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 1   around the country with trying to find out better
  


 2   ideas, better solutions, and vice-versa, sharing
  


 3   what we do here with those agencies.  And so,
  


 4   it's been a real successful partnership.
  


 5          We're planning for the conference, so
  


 6   that's in June, Juneteenth, kind of based on the
  


 7   Juneteenth theme.  And so, we'll have agencies
  


 8   from around the country come in and participate
  


 9   in the training.  We've partnered with the
  


10   Governor's Council on -- for people with
  


11   disabilities, and so, we'll be doing a hybrid
  


12   piece there.  We think that's exciting.  And
  


13   we'll deal with a lot of topics that we -- that
  


14   deal with civil rights and what we do here at the
  


15   agency, as well as some of the things that deal
  


16   with disability and making sure things are
  


17   accessible.
  


18          So, it's been a really good year, and
  


19   David will talk a little bit about the
  


20   legislation that we've been looking at and what
  


21   we're trying to do with collecting data.  So,
  


22   this is an exciting year, I will tell everybody,
  


23   and we think the past has been great, the







21


  
 1   future's going to be even better.
  


 2          And remember, this year our theme is
  


 3   humanity.  I mean we've talked about that.  We --
  


 4   even though we do this work, we still want to put
  


 5   out a positive message to others, because it is
  


 6   about how we treat one another, it is -- humanity
  


 7   will change how we treat people and help to
  


 8   eradicate discrimination.  So, we try to do those
  


 9   types of things in our messaging so that it's
  


10   positive.
  


11          So, any questions for me before I turn it
  


12   over to David?
  


13                     (No response.)
  


14               MR. WILSON:  I'm going to --
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any --
  


16   are there any questions on the line?
  


17                     (No response.)
  


18               MR. WILSON:  Okay.  I'm going to turn
  


19   it over to David, and I'm --
  


20               COMM. RAMOS:  I don't have any
  


21   questions.
  


22               MR. WILSON:  And I apologize; I'm
  


23   going over --
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 1               COMM. HARRINGTON:  No, there are no
  


 2   questions.  I just wanted to give you guys kudos
  


 3   for everything that you guys did last year, and
  


 4   I'm looking forward to seeing that you continue.
  


 5   Your kickoff of MLK with your program was
  


 6   phenomenal, and we look forward to the things to
  


 7   come.
  


 8               MR. WILSON:  And thanks for the
  


 9   gloves, Holli, and the support for the airport
  


10   with gloves.  This winter wasn't as bad as we had
  


11   in previous years.  Chair Slash, you know.
  


12   You've --
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yep.
  


14               MR. WILSON:  -- been there, and so --
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  We did great this
  


16   year.  It was very pleasant to be outside, it was
  


17   mild, misty.
  


18               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  But anyway, I'm
  


19   going to that same event that Holli's headed to,
  


20   so, again, I want to listen and be a part of
  


21   what's happening there.  So, thank you, everyone.
  


22          David, you'll finish?
  


23               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Absolutely.
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 1   Thank you, Chair Slash.
  


 2          A couple of updates on some projects.
  


 3   Like Greg mentioned, we have the CMS enhancements
  


 4   that we're working on, our Case Management
  


 5   System, so a lot of those enhancements have been
  


 6   implemented, and now our staff are working within
  


 7   those, so that's going to better enable us to
  


 8   move cases through that process and track things
  


 9   within it.
  


10          We really didn't have a litigation section
  


11   in there before, but now we do, so we're going
  


12   to -- our attorneys are going to be able to have
  


13   things in there and move cases along, and we're
  


14   going to be able to generate reports more easily
  


15   and look at metrics and those kind of things.
  


16   So, we're excited about the new capabilities that
  


17   we'll be able to have from that system.
  


18          We also have the -- he mentioned the phone
  


19   system.  It's the Genesis Cloud phone system, so
  


20   it's a computer-based phone system, so we're
  


21   going to be getting rid of our desktops -- our
  


22   desk phones, essentially.  And currently
  


23   January 26th, next Thursday, is our go-live date
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 1   for the new phone system, so we're excited about
  


 2   that.
  


 3          We're fine tuning that.  We're getting our
  


 4   staff trained on how to operate within it, but
  


 5   starting on January 26th, when somebody calls
  


 6   into our 1-800 number or the general 317-233-2600
  


 7   number, then it'll go into the automated
  


 8   answering system, and then farm staff out to
  


 9   wherever they need to go within that, based on
  


10   who they want to talk to.
  


11          We do have -- we just finalized some
  


12   contracts for engaging in housing testing, a
  


13   testing program.  We've partnered with Indiana
  


14   Housing and Community Development Authority, and
  


15   also procured some HUD funds for that, so we're
  


16   working with an outside vendor who's going to
  


17   hire the staff and everything to do the testing.
  


18          So, they're going to be going to mainly
  


19   IHCDA properties and do testing on various
  


20   different discriminatory type actions, so that
  


21   you have a control person and then the test
  


22   person, and then see if there's a significant
  


23   difference in between how they're treated, and
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 1   then based on that, we can -- that could generate
  


 2   director-initiated complaints, and then go ahead
  


 3   and investigate further.
  


 4          So, we're engaged in that.  We have
  


 5   essentially a two-year contract with a vendor to
  


 6   engage in testing per -- to the tune of about
  


 7   $275,000 worth of testing over the two years.
  


 8   So, we're excited about what that'll show and
  


 9   what type of impact that'll have.
  


10          As far as some metrics go, we've been able
  


11   to close out 2022, so I can kind of report on
  


12   where we're at with end-of-the-year numbers, and
  


13   to kind of give you a comparison of where we were
  


14   in 2022 compared to 2021, in 2022, we had 2,470
  


15   inquiries, and that was up from 2,365 in 2021, so
  


16   about 105 increase.
  


17          However, we were able to generate a
  


18   significant more number of complaints this year.
  


19   We had 790 complaints, formalized complaints, in
  


20   2022, versus 507 in 2021.  That was a 56-percent
  


21   increase in formalized complaints between the two
  


22   years.
  


23          Another, I think, pretty cool thing is
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 1   that in 2021, from those inquiries to complaints,
  


 2   that was about a 21.4 percent inquiry to
  


 3   formalized complaint realization versus 2022.  It
  


 4   was increased to a 32 percent.  So, more
  


 5   inquiries resulted in complaints being drafted
  


 6   from their contact with us.
  


 7          And then in 2022, we -- through our
  


 8   mediation services for our cases, the settlements
  


 9   that were entered into resulted in over $765,000
  


10   worth of monetary relief for complainants, and
  


11   that was up from 560,000 in 2021, so a 37-percent
  


12   increase in monetary relief for complainants.
  


13   And then we also closed 676 cases in 2022, which
  


14   was an increase from 520 in 2021.
  


15          So, a lot of work was done this past year,
  


16   just in general, but also in comparison to 2021.
  


17   You know, some of that may be attributed to more
  


18   folks coming out of the pandemic and people more
  


19   interacting with each other and just people being
  


20   people, resulting in complaints and stuff, but
  


21   we've also had a very -- a pretty stable staff
  


22   this year and a very good staff, so I think that
  


23   that's helped move cases along to generate those
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 1   numbers.
  


 2          We do have currently, or as of the end of
  


 3   December, 61 open litigation cases, and just to
  


 4   kind of give you a perspective over the year, at
  


 5   the beginning of 2022, in January, we had about
  


 6   45 open litigation cases.  At its peak, we were
  


 7   at about 75 open litigation cases during the
  


 8   middle of the year, and now we're back down to
  


 9   the low 60's, so, a product of getting things
  


10   settled, moving things along, and all of that.
  


11          Overall in 2022, we had about a
  


12   ten-and-a-half percent cause finding rate as far
  


13   as cases closed as a probable cause, so that's, I
  


14   think, consistent with years past, but those are
  


15   kind of metrics as far as some of the work that
  


16   the operations side does.
  


17          Greg mentioned that I am tracking kind of
  


18   the legislative things that are going on right
  


19   now.  We're in the middle of the General
  


20   Assembly.  It just started a couple of weeks ago,
  


21   so there's several bills that have potential
  


22   impact for the work that we do within the
  


23   Commission.
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 1          So, we'll see kind of where they go or if
  


 2   they proceed, some looking at equal pay
  


 3   discrimination, some looking at some things more
  


 4   in the education article, but they talk about the
  


 5   discrimination stuff, so it may bleed over into
  


 6   what we do as far as investigating discrimination
  


 7   within the education area, even though it's not
  


 8   specifically within our chapter.
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Can I ask a quick
  


10   question --
  


11               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Sure.
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  -- about that?
  


13   In those cases, would that mean that the ICRC
  


14   would be a part of testimony or a recommendation
  


15   before testimony is accepted on the types of
  


16   things that could lead something back here very
  


17   quickly?
  


18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Are you talking
  


19   about like within the General Assembly?
  


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yeah, as they are
  


21   working through the bill formation process.
  


22               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.  So, we
  


23   work with the Governor's Office as far as whether
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 1   or not we would provide testimony for any
  


 2   particular committee hearing on a particular
  


 3   bill.  Sometimes the committee may request an
  


 4   agency to come in and talk about a bill's impact
  


 5   on that agency, and then we would coordinate that
  


 6   with the Governor's Office as far as providing
  


 7   that testimony and making sure that what we're
  


 8   seeing is aligned with what the Governor's Office
  


 9   has for its kind of legislative priorities and
  


10   everything.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


12               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  So, you know, we
  


13   may get asked to talk about a couple of these,
  


14   but some -- many of these may not even see a
  


15   committee hearing, so it depends on kind of what
  


16   the chair of that committee wants to do as far as
  


17   hearing bills.
  


18          There's one that would directly impact
  


19   this Commission, but it's an impact of all
  


20   commissions and agencies, but it's a bill that
  


21   would require all meetings like this to be
  


22   transmitted live and to be recorded, and then the
  


23   recordings of that transmission of that public
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 1   meeting to be maintained for three years, and
  


 2   then sent over to Archives after that.
  


 3          So, that's something that's out there, so,
  


 4   again, with all of the other bills that I'm
  


 5   tracking, it's one of those that I'm tracking,
  


 6   but it's one that would have direct impact on
  


 7   this Commission and -- but we're already doing
  


 8   live transmissions, but we would just continue
  


 9   that practice, and then there's that archival
  


10   aspect of it post-meeting.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Is there anything
  


12   possibly going through the General Assembly that
  


13   would also allow commissions to meet virtually a
  


14   hundred percent?
  


15               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  No.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  No one has
  


17   brought that up at all?
  


18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  That is not in
  


19   any of the bills that I've seen.
  


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That's insane.
  


21   Okay.  I just -- I have so many questions.  I
  


22   have asked the Governor's staff this question
  


23   directly, because all commissions probably had
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 1   great attendance rates when they were virtual,
  


 2   and they've likely gone back to poor attendance.
  


 3               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  (Nodded yes.)
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  My small
  


 5   bone to pick here.  Small; right?
  


 6               COMM. SILBERBERG:  Right.
  


 7               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Specifically, we
  


 8   want people from all over the state to
  


 9   participate in these hearings.
  


10               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  So, like I said,
  


11   I'm monitoring all of the bills that I believe
  


12   have some type of impact on the work that we do
  


13   here within the Commission, so as things kind of
  


14   move through the process, I'll update the
  


15   Commission at future meetings as far as where
  


16   they stand and what's going on with those.
  


17          And then at the last Commission meeting we
  


18   talked a little bit about translation services,
  


19   because I had mentioned that with the new phone
  


20   call system, we're going to have a Spanish option
  


21   for callers so that they can go through that.  I
  


22   did find out that in 2022 we spent roughly $530
  


23   on translation services.  We're currently going
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 1   through kind of the invoices and stuff to see how
  


 2   that breaks down, but just like one invoice from
  


 3   December of 2021, there were six instances where
  


 4   we used the translation service, and that equated
  


 5   to about $42 worth of cost for that service.
  


 6          So, we'll look to generate a little bit
  


 7   more specific numbers as far as how frequently
  


 8   the translation service is being used, but I know
  


 9   the Commission had asked that last time, so I
  


10   wanted to just give an update on that we're
  


11   looking at it and trying to see if we can get a
  


12   better number for that for the Commission.
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That number could
  


14   either represent an underrepresented population
  


15   or maybe a -- they just don't know that the
  


16   translation exists and how easy it is to access.
  


17   It could be all things; right?
  


18               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Yeah, and like
  


19   even this December one, all of the calls on that,
  


20   or all of the interactions, four out of the six
  


21   were one of our staff attorneys talking with
  


22   complainants or aggrieved persons, and then two
  


23   of them were one of our mediation staff --
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 2               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- working
  


 3   through the mediation process.  So, it doesn't
  


 4   look like any of those were like our intake staff
  


 5   talking with a complainant calling in for an
  


 6   inquiry, but those do happen, but we also have
  


 7   some Spanish-speaking staff --
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 9               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- who are here,
  


10   who -- frequently calls are routed to them for
  


11   that interaction if possible, so --
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  So, that
  


13   speaks to staff, and that -- I had an additional
  


14   question, but I think that just answered it.
  


15               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  Okay.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any
  


17   questions for David or questions that we may want
  


18   to ask David that he can answer on behalf of
  


19   Executive Director Wilson?
  


20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I have just a
  


21   comment.  I think that like over the years we
  


22   could draw a pretty close parallel between the
  


23   number of complaints and inquiries to the various
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 1   effective outreach and educational work that the
  


 2   Commission has done.  So, I think we should
  


 3   remember to put it in perspective, that when it
  


 4   seems like we're not making progress, actually it
  


 5   reflects through the numbers that we are making
  


 6   progress.
  


 7               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  And I would agree
  


 8   with that.  Our education and outreach efforts
  


 9   definitely increased last year, which may be
  


10   another contributing factor to why we had
  


11   increase -- an increase in complaints, so --
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Yes.
  


13               MR. FLEISCHHACKER:  -- absolutely.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


15          No other questions?
  


16                     (No response.)
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And I -- we don't
  


18   have anyone from the public on the line or in
  


19   person, so no need to call for public comments.
  


20          I'll make just a brief personal point of
  


21   privilege.  Thank you, Vice-Chair Ramos, for
  


22   coming out last week.  Comm. Harrington is off.
  


23   She was also around last week as well.  I was
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 1   able to be around for the first time in years, so
  


 2   a job well done.  I know that as staff, there are
  


 3   many staff members that took part, and those of
  


 4   you who showed up after hours, I appreciate you
  


 5   for that as well.
  


 6          Oh, you were around, too, that's right.
  


 7   You came with us too.  Thank you.  Thanks for
  


 8   being there.
  


 9               COMM. JACKSON:  You're welcome.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Other than that,
  


11   I think this was a light meeting, but it was well
  


12   run.  Thank you for your time.
  


13          Thank you, everyone on the phone.
  


14          Vice-Chair Ramos, enjoy your vacation.
  


15               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


16               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  It is -- let's
  


17   see -- 1:41.  I will call this meeting adjourned.
  


18                        -  -  -
             Thereupon, the proceedings of


19            January 20, 2023 were concluded
                  at 1:41 o'clock p.m.


20                        -  -  -
  


21
  


22
  


23
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